
Please ask for:
Lisa Young
Direct dial:
(023) 9254 5340
Fax:
(023) 9254 5587
E-mail:
lisa.young@gosport.gov.uk

18 February 2020

S U M M O N S

MEETING: Regulatory Board
DATE: 26 February 2020
TIME:: 6.00 pm
PLACE: Council Chamber
Democratic Services contact: Lisa Young

PAUL GRANT 
BOROUGH SOLICITOR AND MONITORING OFFICER

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

The Mayor (Councillor Mrs Jones (ex-Officio) and Councillor Hook (ex-Officio))
Councillor Jessop (Chairman)

Councillor Mrs Hook (Vice-Chair)

Councillor Bateman
Councillor Mrs Batty
Councillor Casey
Councillor Earle
Councillor Farr
Councillor Foster-Reed

Councillor Hammond
Councillor Miss Kelly
Councillor Raffaelli
Councillor Scard
Councillor Westerby

Public Document Pack



FIRE PRECAUTIONS

(To be read by the Mayor if members of the public are present)

In the event of the fire alarm sounding, please leave the room immediately. Proceed 
downstairs by way of the main stairs or as directed by GBC staff, follow any of the emergency 
exit signs. People with disability or mobility issues please identify yourself to GBC staff who 
will assist in your evacuation of the building.

IMPORTANT NOTICE:

 If you are in a wheelchair or have difficulty in walking and require 
access to the Committee Room on the First Floor of the Town Hall 
for this meeting, assistance can be provided by Town Hall staff on 
request.

If you require any of the services detailed above please ring the Direct Line 
for the Democratic Services Officer listed on the Summons (first page).

NOTE:

i. Councillors are requested to note that, if any Councillor who is not a Member of the Board 
wishes to speak at the Board meeting, then the Borough Solicitor is required to receive 
not less than 24 hours prior notice in writing or electronically and such notice shall 
indicate the agenda item or items on which the member wishes to speak. 

ii. Please note that mobile phones should be switched off or switched to silent for the duration 
of the meeting.

iii. This meeting may be filmed or otherwise recorded. By attending this meeting, you are 
consenting to any broadcast of your image and being recorded. 



Regulatory Board
26 February 2020

AGENDA

RECOMMENDED 
MINUTE FORMAT

1.  APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

All Members are required to disclose, at this point in the meeting or 
as soon as possible thereafter, any disclosable pecuniary interest or 
personal interest in any item(s) being considered at this meeting.

3.  MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 15 JANUARY 2020 

4.  DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4 

(NOTE: The Board is required to receive a deputation(s) on a matter 
which is before the meeting of the Board provided that notice of the 
intended deputation and its object shall have been received by the 
Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Monday 24th  February 2020.  The 
total time for deputations in favour and against a proposal shall not 
exceed 10 minutes).

5.  PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5 

NOTE: The Board is required to allow a total of 15 minutes for 
questions from Members of the public on matters within the terms of 
reference of the Board provided that notice of such Question(s) shall 
have been submitted to the Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Monday 
24th February 2020).

6.  FAREHAM LOCAL PLAN 2036: SUPPLEMENT 

To consider and approve a response to the Fareham Local Plan 
(FLP) 2036: Supplement consultation which has been prepared by 
Fareham Borough Council (FBC).

7.  CONSULTATION FROM FAREHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL

P/19/1260/OA - CROSS BOUNDARY OUTLINE APPLICATION, 
WITH ALL MATTERS RESERVED EXCEPT FOR ACCESS, FOR 
THE CONSTRUCTION OF UP TO 99 RESIDENTIAL DWELLINGS, 
LANDSCAPING, OPEN SPACE AND ASSOCIATED WORKS, WITH 
ACCESS FROM BROOKERS LANE (GOSPORT BOROUGH 
COUNCIL TO ONLY DETERMINE PART OF THE APPLICATION 



Regulatory Board
26 February 2020

RELATING TO PART ACCESS IN GOSPORT BOROUGH)

LAND EAST OF NEWGATE LANE EAST, FAREHAM
 

An Outline planning application has been submitted to Fareham 
Borough Council (FBC) and to Gosport Borough Council (GBC) by 
Bargate Homes Ltd for a development of up to 99 dwellings.

As neighbouring authority GBC has been consulted on the elements 
of proposals within Fareham by FBC. It should be noted that the 
elements of the planning application that relates to land in Gosport 
Borough (reference 19/00516/OUT) remain under consideration and 
will be referred to a future meeting of the Regulatory Board for 
determination.

8.  REPORT OF THE HEAD OF PLANNING AND REGENERATION 

Schedule of planning applications with recommendations.
(grey sheets pages 1-13)

9.  ANY OTHER ITEMS 

Which the Chairman determines should be considered, by reason of 
special circumstances, as a matter of urgency.



A MEETING OF THE REGULATORY BOARD
WAS HELD ON 15 JANUARY 2020

Councillors Bateman, Mrs Batty, Casey, Earle, Farr, Foster-Reed, Mrs Furlong 
(Substituting for Mrs Hook), Hammond, Jessop, Miss Kelly, Raffaelli, Scard and 
Westerby

39. APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE 

There were none. 

40. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Councillor Foster-Reed declared that he knew the applicant for agenda item 6 23 
The Parkway and took no further discussion on the discussion or voting thereon. 

41. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 16 OCTOBER 2019 

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting of the Board held on 16th October 
2019 be signed as a true and correct record. 

42. DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4 

Deputations were received on the following items 

 17/0290/FULL – Royal Clarence Marina 
 19/00314/VOC – Royal Clarence Marina 
 19/00375/FULL – Brockhurst Gate 
 19/00371/FULL – 23 The Parkway 

43. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5 

There were none. 

44. REPORT OF THE HEAD OF PLANNING AND REGENERATION 

The Head of Planning and Regeneration submitted a report on applications received for 
planning permission setting out their recommendations.

RESOLVED:  That a decision be taken on each application for planning permission as 
detailed below.

17/00290/FULL - CAR PARKING STRATEGY (AMENDMENT TO CAR PARKING 
STRATEGIES APPROVED 29.02.08 AND 16.10.15) (CONSERVATION AREA) (as 
amended by documents received 18.11.19 and 06.01.20)
Royal Clarence Marina  Weevil Lane  Gosport  Hampshire    

Agenda Item 3



The Planning Officer updated the Board. 

They were advised that within paragraph 6 of the principal issues reference was made 
to the daytime commercial parking being made available to visitors after 6pm within 
North Meadow (Zone 2), however, this was incorrect and those spaces would actually 
be made available to residents.  

Within Condition 2 relating to the plans, reference to the car parking management plan 
should be updated from 15 November 2019 to 6 January 2020 as a new document 
had been provided to address the changes in numbers to Zone 3 noted in paragraph 
3 of the ‘site and proposals’ within the report.

Condition 3 was proposed to be amended and split into three parts, introducing a 
trigger for providing the timetable.  It was, therefore, proposed that the first part was 
amended to require the timetable for the implementation of the parking etc., to be 
provided to the Council within six months of the decision being issued.  The second 
part requires the works to be carried out in accordance with the approved details and 
timetable and a third part requires the parking delivery and turning area to be retained 
and kept available for its use.

The Board was also provided with some background information and advised that to 
provide some clarification of the matters set out in the report, the application relates to 
the car parking management for the majority of Royal Clarence yard, located on the 
east side of Weevil Lane.

Planning permission was originally granted in outline in 2001 and a subsequent full 
permission to change parts of the development and increase the number of residential 
properties, in particular, was granted in 2006 on appeal.  This included the approval 
of a car parking management plan and a condition requiring details of how each phase 
would implement that management plan.  Subsequent separate full permissions have 
been approved throughout the site resulting in a complex array of interconnecting and 
overlapping permissions. 

This application essentially is to bring all of the car parking management under one 
comprehensive plan, amending those previously approved, for the whole of this part 
of the Royal Clarence Yard Development.  This was as originally intended by the 
Inspector and, therefore, relates only to the approval of matters relating to the 
management of the car parking. It is not considered to be an opportunity to carry out 
a full review of the layout of the whole site, or require compliance with any updated 
planning policy, albeit this application makes amendments to the overall layout of the 
car parks, as set out in the report.   All other matters, including lighting and general 
site signage would have been considered under the separate development consents 
for the physical construction works, notwithstanding, the application includes indicative 
signage details to direct drivers to the relevant parking areas.  A separate 4 point action 
plan is being progressed by the Economic Prosperity Team with Berkeley Homes, 
which seeks to address some of these wider signage and lighting issues.

Philippa Dickinson was invited to address the Board. 



She advised RCY was supposed to be one of the jewels in Gosport's crown – a 
Conservation Area destined to be not just a nice place to live but a place for jobs, 
and tourism - a key plank in the economic regeneration of the Borough.
If it was to achieve that aim, it seemed reasonable to require that the car-parking 
plan should satisfy the obvious questions:

 Where do I park?  
 Once parked, how do I get to where I want to be? 
 Can I get there safely?

These common-sense questions lie at the heart of LP23. But the Board are being 
asked to approve a plan for car parking which fails to deliver key objectives of that 
policy: 

 the lack of coherent and safe pedestrian routes, 
 the lack of level and safe access for disabled users, 
 extremely poor lighting – well below national standards - creates profoundly 

unsafe areas, particularly on pavements and at crossing points
It is unwelcoming and confusing for visitors and residents alike
There are also problems with:

 big reductions in Visitor Parking at the north of the site; More visitors needing 
to park there with the new 55 apartments in the NM7 block 

 Lack of visitor cycle parking for customers and tourists
 No site speed limits 
 Unsafe internal road junctions 

How has this happened?
The site has been developed piecemeal over the past 20 years.  Successive 
development has narrowly focused on the details of each application “in its own 
merits”. Has there ever been any checking of integration with the original 
development brief for the site?  Doesn’t look like it.
That has created problems at the boundaries between phases of development.  One 
of the most recent and egregious examples being the lack of clear, safe pedestrian 
access between the North Meadow car park to the NM7 block.
So why is so much weight given to the expired previous approvals for Car Parking 
than to local policies?  Particularly the key objectives of LP23 and its predecessors.  
Surely it is up to the LPA to take a common-sense view in determining the relative 
weight which should be given to expired previous permissions. 
The 2015 CPMP expired towards the end of 2018.  It was flawed, never 
implemented and is no loss.  
Why have time-limits on planning approvals if you are forever going to be hamstrung 
by previous permissions long after they have expired?  How can it be fair or make 
common sense if the applicant is allowed to make changes to things which no longer 
suit them, but the LPA is not allowed to bring a new application in line with local 
policies?
And yet here we are in 2020 looking at a new parking plan which doesn’t satisfy local 
policy and is still not good enough.  
The devil is, as ever, in the detail.  With time short, here are just a couple of 
illustrations:

 Safe disabled access routes.  A few more dropped kerbs are offered – but not 
enough and not in the right places. You might be able to get your wheelchair 
from your car onto a pavement but will you find a dropped kerb or safe level 
crossing at the other end? Unlikely.



 Terrible lighting.  “Safety” means safe day and night. A minimal improvement 
to some lighting was proposed but nothing in the worst spots – eg North 
Meadow car park, on pavements and road crossings.   No-one wants the 
place lit up like a sports stadium but there has to be enough lighting to be 
safe.

Perhaps some of the bigger lighting issues across the site  do have to wait for the 4 
Point Action Plan (whenever that may come) but surely it can’t make sense to 
approve a layout plan for the car parks without also ensuring that adequate levels of 
lighting are provided?

In conclusion:
No-one has any illusions that more parking spaces can be conjured up on this site.  
However, there are so many ways, with thoughtful and careful design, that this 
parking plan could address all the other issues and make a much, much better use 
of the space than the proposal presented and this was probably the last chance to 
get this right.
“Pragmatic” should not mean an expectation that you will accept a bad design for 
this important site.
Workable and pragmatic ideas have been suggested – help and advice offered by 
GAGDF – sadly mostly ignored by the applicant. That’s a real missed opportunity.
So:  

 Please don’t approve a plan which is manifestly flawed and actually unsafe, 
particularly for disabled users and after dark.  

 Since this is big and complex site, we suggest that you defer your decision 
and come and look at the issues yourselves.  If you could come after dark, 
which would really illustrate the problems.  

 And finally, if you are nevertheless minded to approve the application, at the 
very least, we ask that you consider adding additional conditions to address 
the most troubling aspects:  

o the lack of coherent, safe pedestrian & disabled access and 
o The shockingly low and unsafe areas of lighting.

In answer to a Member’s question, the Board was advised that no consultation had 
taken place from Berkeley Homes and that the residents group had received no 
contact about the proposals. 

The Board was advised that a detailed response had been provided two and a half 
years ago and that a response had been undertaken to address the issues raised but 
that this had not gone far enough. 

The Board was advised that conversations had taken place in 2012 and that a small 
group of commercial and individuals had held conversations with Berkeley homes in 
October, but that no proper consultation had been undertaken. 

Berkeley Homes had been written to on a number of occasions but requests for 
improvements had been ignored. 

It was felt that commercial sites would suffer as a result of a reduction in parking 
spaces and that the proposal on offer would not work. 



David Gilchrest addressed the Board on behalf of the applicant and advised that the 
applications were the final phase of proposals and development that began in 2005. 

The proposal layout would manage parking off of Weevil Lane and was safe and 
usable for both the commercial users and residents of the site. 

There had been a full consultation with Stakeholders in 2015 with residents, owners 
and tenants and the principle issues had been replicated and enhanced. 

Further discussions had taken place and the proposals sought to further enhance the 
site amended the parking spaces on site to provide turning space for larger lorries 
which would greatly enhance the appeal of the site to retailers and tenants. There was 
also proposed to be an increase in electric charge points. 

The signage and wayfinding in place exceeded the requirements and reviews were 
ongoing as part of the rebrand for the site. 

The proposals were working towards the long term success of the site and whilst 
sympathetic to concerns they were along the same principal as those applied in 2015.

There were greater proposals for dropped kerbs and parking space size had 
increased, as well as the provision for more electric charge points.

In answer to a Member‘s question the Board was advised that a full consultation had 
taken place in 2015 and that it had acknowledged that there were still issues. The 
resubmission of the proposal was to enhance the site and resolve issues and that 
consultation had been undertaken, but not to the extent of 2015.

The Board was advised that there were proposals to introduce dropped kerbs and that 
this would improve navigation for those that needed them, and that this was an 
improvement to the 2015 proposal. The lighting had been improved and the electric 
charge points had increased. 

In answer to a Member‘s question, the Board were advised that it was not possible to 
determine the charge that would be provided through the power points as 
consideration needed to be given to the maximum capacity of the grid and that 
amendments could not be undertaken to listed buildings. 

The applicant, would however work hard to work to the maximum capacity within the 
constraints of the grid, they were however content for this to be conditioned. 

In answer to a subsequent question, the Board were advised that the proposal would 
not lead to trailing cables across car parking spaces. 

The Board discussed the merits of a site visit or a deferral to allow further time for the 
applicant to consult with residents, Members also felt there should be an increase in 
cycle spaces. 



Mr Gilchrest advised that a consultation had taken place with the residents association 
in November and this was felt appropriate as it was representative of the residents on 
the site. 

The Board was advised that there would be marked disabled bays and a commitment 
to improved signage and lighting. 

In answer to a Member‘s question the Board was advised that details of the 
consultation undertaken was in the report and that site notifications and letters to 
previous correspondence had been undertaken. 

The Board was advised that the four point plan was separate to this application and 
that the lighting and the commercial elements were not a consideration and that 
conditions of such would go beyond the remit of the action plan. 

Members welcomed Berkeley Homes‘ commitment to the improvement of the lighting, 
signage and the maximisation of electric charge points on site but hoped that in future 
they would be more proactive in their engagement with local residents. 

It was proposed and seconded that the application be deferred for a site visit and that 
the visit take place in the evening. A vote was subsequently taken on the proposal and 
lost. 

It was proposed that authority be delegated to Officers to secure conditions regarding 
the improvements required to electric car charging points and lighting and signage. 
This was agreed. 

RESOLVED: That application 17/00290/FULL be approved subject to the amended 
conditions in the report of the Head of Planning and Regeneration and that authority 
be delegated to the Development Manager and the Borough Solicitor to add or 
amended appropriate conditions regarding electric car charging points and  lighting 
and signage on site. 

19/00314/VOC -VARIATION OF CONDITION 7 (CAR PARKING) OF PLANNING 
PERMISSION 15/00620/FULL - ERECTION OF BUILDING (NM7) COMPRISING 55 
NO. FLATS WITH ASSOCIATED ACCESS AND CAR PARKING 
(CONSERVATION AREA)

Block NM7  Royal Clarence Yard  Weevil Lane  Gosport  Hampshire  

Alan Rogers was invited to address the Board. 

He advised that he understood that traffic related and other planning issues, could 
not be revisited in the current application for NM7. However, decisions taken solely 
in relation to NM7 would have a significant impact on the wider issue of road traffic 
and pedestrian safety and on the Royal Clarence Parking Strategy.



It is in this broader context that we believed that the NM7 application should be 
reviewed as it offered a last-ditch opportunity to correct a strategic oversight and 
address a serious safety issue.

The parking strategy has always focussed on optimising the number of parking 
spaces. What has never been optimised at any stage is the safe and efficient flow of 
traffic into and out of the development. 

The entry into Royal Clarence from the bottom of Weevil Lane is at a complex and 
busy bend with five closely spaced entry/exit junctions and with key wayfinding 
decisions having to be made soon after rounding the bend.

Traffic slows and sometimes comes to a halt as drivers wonder which way to go.  
The layby on the immediate left is regularly blocked by cars and lorries, which often 
narrows the entry road. The road at this bend is also crossed by pedestrians making 
their way from the car park.

The NM7 access road is the sixth junction to be added to this busy area and the 
direction of its one-way flow can either add to the problems at the bend or decrease 
them.

Diagram A shows the currently proposed direction with entry from the East. We 
understand that this was changed from a West flow to enable heavy goods vehicles 
to access the bin stores at the East end of the road. 

However, traffic rounding the bend will need to quickly see the NM7 turn and cut 
across the flow of exiting traffic.  Because the junction is reached quickly there is 
every likelihood of it being missed as driver attention will naturally be to the left as 
they round the corner. 

If they cannot find a parking space at NM7 they will have to circulate around the 
bend again to reach the car park.  To further complicate wayfinding the second 
junction to the right for this car park follows a few feet after the NM7 turn.
Diagram B. shows the flow of the one-way system from West to East.
This filters NM7 traffic off from Weevil Lane, meaning less traffic around the bend 
and only one turn to the right needing to be signed.
Heavy goods vehicles can still access the bin store area without blocking access 
NM7 from the Weevil Lane end. 
However, there is another simple to implement change that can greatly decrease the 
complexity at the corner and clear traffic from the danger area.
Diagram C. shows how, by closing off the current access into the North Meadow car 
park and creating a wider entrance further down the road, traffic can be moved 
quickly away from the congested corner. 
The current entry location was dictated by plans for a residential block on the first 
half of the car park. This is no longer planned, making central access now possible.
The car park is on two different levels but this can be accommodated by a ramp 
between them, making the whole of the parking area accessible from one point of 
entry.
In conclusion:  



We believe that it would not be difficult to design a much safer and more user-
friendly route for traffic flowing into and out of RCY. Diagrams B and C illustrate this.
Optimised traffic flow is the base discipline that needs to be fixed before one can 
then sensibly address all the other important issues such as parking space layout, 
wayfinding, lighting and safe pedestrian access. 
We would therefore ask you not to approve a plan which manifestly fails to offer the 
optimum and least confusing flow pattern for traffic and one that is actually unsafe. 
If you don’t want to refuse the application, we suggest that you defer your decision 
until you have visited the site to see the problems and opportunities for yourselves. 
If, however you are minded to approve the application, we would ask that you 
consider doing so with additional conditions to ensure that the NM7 road direction 
decision is reconsidered and that steps are taken to further optimise the traffic flow 
and address the safety issue.
   

In answer to a Member’s question, the Board was advised that the road layout was 
not a consideration of the application and that the access was considered and agreed 
previously. 

Mr Gilchrest advised that he would happily discuss improvements to signage as a 
separate issue to the application.

RESOLVED: That application 19/00314/VOC for a variation of condition 7 be approved 
subject to the conditions in the report of the Head of Planning and Regeneration 

19/00375/FULL - ERECTION OF 2NO. COMMERCIAL UNITS (USE CLASS 
A1/A3/D2/BEAUTY/TANNING SALON (SUI GENERIS)) (REVISED APPLICATION 
TO 18/00388/FULL) (as amplified by e-mails dated 24.10.19 and 18.12.19)
Brockhurst Gate Retail Park  Cotsworth Road  Heritage Way  Gosport  Hampshire  

Mark Harris and Tony Sweeney were invited to address the Board. 

They advised that the application was for smaller units that complimented the existing 
units on a very successful site. They advised that the potential occupiers had indicated 
that there were no other suitable units within the Borough that appealed with the footfall 
the development offered. 



The application was for two units and would provide the flexibility the potential 
operators required. 

They advised that they believed the concern to be as a result of the relocated 
McDonalds but advised that it had been a success and that the size of the proposed 
unit was completely different to such a large use. The Board was advised that the 
potential applicant for one of the units did not consider any existing retail developments 
to be a suitable site. 

They advised the Board that the unit would have minimal impact on the heritage site 
as the proposal was for small units that would be screened by a tree line. 

The Board was advised that the applicants had provided a prestigious gateway 
development to the Borough and were seeking to enhance that further. 

The retail park was completely occupied and the impact on the High Street would be 
minimal.

Brockhurst Gate had brought Marks and Spencer to the Town and was incredibly 
successful and that the proposal was not unattractive or a detriment to the Borough. 

In answer to a Members question the Board was advised that there was a potential for 
a café type unit but that it would be more of a pop up style use. It was unclear whether 
there would be seating at the proposal, but that this had not been confirmed. 

Members noted the letter of support from the potential occupiers. 

A Member advised that they felt that it difficult to accept that there were no other 
suitable properties for a potential tanning salon in the Borough and felt that there were 
many vacant units suitable for such proposals. 

The Board was advised that the proposed occupier had not found units flexible enough 
for their needs. 

The Board felt that any additional units, however small would continue to affect areas 
such as the High Street and Lee on Solent and that it was important that this was 
recognised when considering such applications. 

Members expressed concern that the application would encroach on the fort and the 
surroundings and question whether the approval of the proposal would set a precedent 
with regard to further encroachment. 



Members did not believe the proposal would enhance the Borough and felt that it the 
existing retail provision should be protected as well as the heritage of the Borough.

The Board felt that the heritage of the Borough should be protected at all costs. 

RESOLVED: That application 19/00375/FULL be refused for the following reasons. 

1.  In the absence of an appropriate assessment that demonstrates there are no 
sequentially preferable sites within the Town and other designated centres, the 
proposals within this out of centre location would fail to satisfy the requirements of the 
sequential test and would have a detrimental impact on the vitality and viability of the 
town centre, contrary to Policies LP9B and LP29 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 
2011-2029 and the NPPF.

 2.  The proposals by reason of the siting of unit 9 forward of the main retail building 
and within the more open 'field of fire' associated with the Scheduled Ancient 
Monument (SAM) of Fort Brockhurst would result in less than substantial harm to the 
significance of the SAM, contrary to Policy LP11 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 
2011-2029 and the NPPF.

19/00180/FULL - RETENTION OF TIMBER OUTBUILDING ADJOINING LISTED 
BUILDING AND RETENTION OF REPLACEMENT WALL (LISTED BUILDING IN A 
CONSERVATION AREA)
16 Bury Road  Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 3UD    

RESOLVED: That planning application 19/00180/FULL be approved subject to the 
conditions in the report of the Head of Planning and Regeneration.  

19/00181/LBA 
LISTED BUILDING APPLICATION - RETENTION OF TIMBER OUTBUILDING 
ADJOINING LISTED BUILDING
16 Bury Road  Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 3UD    

RESOLVED: That listed building application 19/00181/LBA be approved subject to 
the conditions in the report of the Head of Planning and Regeneration.  

19/00371/FULL - 
INSTALLATION OF FIRST FLOOR REAR ROOF TERRACE INCLUDING 
BALUSTRADE
23 The Parkway  Gosport  Hampshire  PO13 0PT   



Councillor Foster-Reed left the room and took no part in the discussion or voting 
there on. 

Mr Mamczur was invited to address the Board. 

He advised that he had submitted the application in August and that he had 
presented a number of amendments to make the application acceptable.

Mr Mamczur provided a photo that was indicative of the type of frosted glass 
screening he was proposing to protect the privacy of his neighbours. He advised that 
the glass was obscure and that it was not possible to see through it. 

He advised that his neighbour’s objection to the proposal had come very late in the 
application process and advised that in photos provided by a neighbour it could 
clearly be seen that they had trespassed into and that he felt as a result, privacy was 
not a priority to them.

He advised that properties in Peel Common had a long history of having balconies 
and that there were other houses in the locality with roof terraces. 

He requested that the Board visit his property to view that the design and application 
were appropriate. 

In answer to a Member’s question he advised the Board that the obscure glass 
would prevent him from looking into his neighbour’s window, but the elevated 
balcony would look over the garden.

He advised the Board that many properties in the area had extended and that he 
was seeking to replace some of the garden lost by providing a terrace as this would 
be an efficient use of space. He advised that the terrace would be used to enjoy 
breakfast. He advised that it would not be used for other meals or entertaining. 

Mr Mamczur also confirmed that there was to be no staircase installed. 

Members debated the proposal and it was felt that the proposal was not acceptable 
and supported the officer’s recommendation for refusal. 

RESOVLED: That planning application 19/00371/FULL be refused. 

45. ANY OTHER ITEMS 

The Board was advised that a start date for an appeal on 87 Leesland Road had 
been received that related to an application that had been refused under delegated 
powers. 



CHAIRMAN

Concluded at 19:40 



 

Board/Committee: Regulatory Board
Date of Meeting: 26th February 2020
Title: Fareham Local Plan 2036: Supplement
Author: Manager of Planning Policy
Status: For Decision

PURPOSE
To consider and approve a response to the Fareham Local Plan (FLP) 
2036: Supplement consultation which has been prepared by Fareham 
Borough Council (FBC).

RECOMMENDATION
That this Council makes the following representations (as expanded upon 
within sections 2-7 of this Report) to Fareham Borough Council:

 That this Council’s previous comments to the Draft Fareham Local 
Plan 2036 (DFLP 2017) and the subsequent Issues and Options 
document are fully considered with these latest representations. 

 That this Council objects to the overall Development Strategy 
including the plan that identifies the South Newgate Lane allocation 
and the Strategic Growth Area (see Section 3 of this Report) as it 
does not represent ‘good growth’.

 That this Council objects to the proposed policy on the Five Year 
Housing Supply as it presumes in favour of development outside of 
the settlement boundaries prior to other types of land within urban 
area boundaries and within more sustainable locations (see Section 
4).

 That this Council maintains its strong objection in full to the 
proposed residential allocation at Newgate Lane (referred to in the 
previous Draft Fareham Local Plan (DFLP) (2017) as HA2) for the 
reasons set out below (see Section 5):

- The proposal would physically and visually diminish the long-
established Strategic Gap between Fareham, Gosport, Lee-on-
the-Solent and Stubbington;

- The proposal will negate the benefits provided by the recent 
improvements to Newgate Lane with a negative impact on traffic 
flow and increased congestion to the detriment of Gosport 
Borough and Stubbington residents and the local economy 
including accessibility to the Solent Enterprise Zone at 
Daedalus;

- The proposal will significantly harm the amenities of local 
Gosport residents by the introduction of new access points to 
existing residential areas, which due to the scale of the proposal 

Agenda Item 6



would lead to a significant increase of traffic on residential 
roads;

- The proposal, as previously described in the DFLP is very car 
dependent with no provision for public transport.  This would 
exacerbate the number of trips using Newgate Lane;

- There is insufficient information on supporting infrastructure 
required including education, medical and community facilities.

 That this Council strongly objects to the designation of Strategic 
Growth Areas (SGAs) (see Section 6) including the South of 
Fareham SGA within the current Strategic Gap between Fareham, 
Gosport, Lee-on-the-Solent and Stubbington for the following 
reason:

- The promotion of SGAs at this stage prejudices work being 
undertaken by local planning authorities at a multilateral level to 
ascertain the most appropriate sustainable broad locations for 
development over the period to 2036 and beyond to 2050, 
known as Strategic Development Opportunity Areas.

- The South of Fareham SGA does not represent ‘good growth’ 
for the residents of Gosport, Lee-on-the-Solent, Stubbington, 
Hillhead and south Fareham and therefore is not considered to 
be sustainable development.

- It is imperative to safeguard effective strategic transport routes 
through the Strategic Gap to improve accessibility to, and from, 
the Gosport Peninsula to support the local economy.  Further 
housing allocations will individually and cumulatively exacerbate 
accessibility constraints for reasons detailed in the report.

- Further housing allocations will lead to the extensive erosion of 
the Strategic Gap, the protection of which is a long established 
planning principle in the South Hampshire area, as identified by 
the Partnership for South Hampshire’s Spatial Position 
Statement that aims to prevent coalescence of settlements, 
maintain a sense of place and settlement identity, and provide 
a countryside setting for the sub region and local communities.

 That Fareham Borough Council are urged to reconsider the 
proposals for HA2 and the SGA which are contrary to the objectives 
of the climate change and air quality polices (as set out in Section 
7 in the FLP: Supplement).

In addition it is recommended that this Council’s representation to the FLP: 
Supplement and previous representations are included in the emerging 
bilateral Statement of Common Ground (SCG) which will be formally 
signed by the Chair of Economic Development Board (section 8).



1 Background

1.1 Members will recall that a Consultation Draft Fareham Local Plan (DFLP) 
was reported to the Regulatory Board of 6th December 2017 in which it 
was resolved that this Council makes a comprehensive and robust 
response to the DFLP.  This included a strongly worded objection to the 
proposed housing allocation known as HA2 for between 370 and 475 
dwellings on the land between the new Newgate Lane East and the 
Gosport Borough boundary. 

1.2 FBC produced a further Issues and Options document which was 
presented to the Regulatory Board of 23rd July 2019 in which this Council 
maintained its objection to the HA2 allocation and objected to the principle 
of further development within the Strategic Gap. 

Report

2 Introduction 
2.1 This report provides an overview of the FLP: Supplement consultation with 

particular emphasis on those elements relevant to Gosport Borough.  A 
copy of this document has been placed in the Members’ Room.  

Local Plan process and Format of document 
2.2 The previous DFLP produced in 2017 included a consolidated plan with the 

full range of policies, proposals and map normally expected in a Local Plan. 
The subsequent Issues and Options document highlighted several issues 
and potential broad options to take into account further housing growth 
following the Government’s recently produced standardised methodology 
to calculate housing need.   This third document is a supplement to the first 
document produced in 2017.  

2.3 All three documents form part of Fareham Borough Council’s informal Local 
Plan consultation, often referred to as the Regulation 18 stage.  This 
Supplement will be combined with the 2017 version of the DFLP, as 
amended following consultation, and will form part of the formal Regulation 
19 stage (due to take place in Spring 2020).  This document will be subject 
to a further six-week consultation.  FBC then propose to submit the 
document to the Secretary of State in the Summer 2020 with an 
Examination in Public envisaged in Autumn/Winter 2020. Once adopted, 
the DFLP will replace Part 1 and Part 2 of its current Local Plan (‘Core 
Strategy’ and the ‘Development Sites and Policies’ respectively). FBC 
intend that the Welborne Plan (Part 3) will remain in place as its contents 
are not being revised by the DFLP.

2.4 This document sets out a revised Development Strategy, identifies further 
proposed development allocations and includes other policy updates to 
take into account amendments in the Government’s National Planning 
Policy Framework (last updated June 2019). 



2.5 The rest of this report is broken down into several sections to reflect the 
content of the Supplement with comments specifically relating to the 
implications for Gosport Borough.  These sections are:

 Development Strategy (Section 3)
 Housing Numbers (Section 4)
 Housing Allocations and maintaining an objection to the HA2 

allocation (Section 5)
 Strategic Growth Area: South of Fareham (Section 6)
 Natural Environment (section 7)

2.6 The report then includes an update on the Statement of Common Ground 
(section 8). 

3 Development Strategy 

3.1 The main part of the development strategy is primarily a plan which is 
included in Appendix 1. The FLP: Supplement states that the concept of 
‘good growth’ is at the heart of the Development Strategy proposed for 
Fareham.  This is defined as building homes and creating employment 
spaces in such a way as to improve the quality of life whilst protecting the 
most valued natural and historic environments. It adds that this also means 
providing open space and leisure opportunities to encourage healthy and 
active lifestyles and encouraging more of us to use active forms of travel 
rather than the car. 

3.2 The document recognises that good growth enables greater choices in 
terms of how its residents, employees and visitors travel and that the 
existing and proposed transport corridors have influenced development 
strategy.

Strategic Gaps
3.3 The document recognises the need to respect settlement boundaries and 

protect the identity of its key settlements.  It acknowledges the two 
strategic gaps: the Meon Valley; and Fareham to Stubbington. It states 
that they will be re-defined to focus on preventing settlement coalescence 
to distinguish them from the additional protection afforded to the Areas of 
Special Landscape Quality such as the Meon, Hamble, Hook Valleys 
Portsdown Hill and the Forest of Bere.

3.4 Paragraph 2.9 of the Supplement states that in order to focus on 
preventing settlement coalescence, ‘it is necessary to understand the 
precise settlements that any ‘strategic gap’ is protecting to allow a careful 
re-drawing of the boundary to ensure that the strategic gap performs the 
function of supporting the retention of settlement identity, whilst avoiding 
confusion with landscape character’.

Other elements of the Development Strategy
3.5 This includes recognising the importance of climate change including 

respecting Coastal Change Management Areas and the need to respect 



areas designated for nature conservation interest.  These policy elements 
are covered in section 7 of this Report.

Comment on the Development Strategy
3.6 Whilst the principles of good growth are supported it is considered that the 

proposed development strategy does not represent ‘good growth’ for the 
residents of Gosport Borough nor those of Fareham Borough particularly 
those in Stubbington and Hillhead and those living in Fareham itself, 
including those  within or in close proximity to the Air Quality Management 
Areas.

3.7 The proposed HA2 allocation and the Strategic Growth Area, with limited 
transport choice, will exacerbate existing traffic congestion issues 
associated with the Gosport Peninsula and increase air pollution to the 
detriment of local residents. It will hamper economic opportunities and 
investment potential within Gosport Borough.

3.8 The plan fails to consider cross-boundary issues and should recognise the 
importance of the long-established Strategic Gap between Fareham, 
Gosport, Lee-on-the-Solent and Stubbington.

3.9 The Development Strategy does not acknowledge the issues relating to 
the transport issues on the Gosport Peninsula. The existing boundaries of 
the Strategic Gap should be retained in order to maintain an effective 
transport corridor through the gap.  Additional development immediately 
adjacent and accessing the route will negate all the benefits of the recently 
improved and commenced road infrastructure.  This investment has been 
implemented to address existing deficiencies not facilitate new 
development.  These issues are expanded further in the following 
sections.

4 Housing Numbers
4.1 The FLP: Supplement updates FBC’s position on housing numbers which 

takes into account the implications of the Government’s new standardised 
methodology introduced by the National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF) in 2018.  It also provides the latest update of this methodology 
which can change on annual basis due to the various inputs that are 
incorporated including using a rolling 10-year average of household 
growth and an annually published affordability ratio. FBC also redefines its 
plan period which now starts in 2020 rather than 2011, as identified in the 
earlier DFLP. This reduces the requirement by nine years.  According to 
the Government’s Planning Practice Guidance this appears to be 
acceptable (although has yet to be tested at an Examination) as past 
unmet need is now addressed by the affordability ratio. Table 1 sets out 
the latest housing requirement for Fareham Borough.



Table 1: Local Plan Housing requirement
Fareham annual housing need 
(based on current data)

520

Plan period 2020-2036 16 years
Total Fareham need 8,320
Plus Buffer of 10-15% 832-1,248
Plus unmet need To be confirmed
Total Local plan Housing 
requirement 

To be confirmed

4.2 Consequently whilst the annual figure is higher using the standardised 
methodology i.e. 520 per annum (p.a.) as opposed to the 455 p.a.(2011-
2034) and 420 p.a. (2034-2036) identified in the earlier DFLP, the plan 
period is now 9 years shorter with the unmet need being accounted for in 
the calculation itself.   Consequently the previous DFLP had a figure of 
11,300 dwellings (rounded) whereas the FLP: Supplement includes a 
figure of 8,320 (520 x 16) plus a buffer of 10-15% (832-1248) making a 
total of 9,152-9,598

4.3 However the Plan recognises that it may likely have to address the unmet 
need from neighbouring authorities and highlights that this figure will have 
to be confirmed and consequently the overall total requirement has yet to 
be established. 

4.4
Comment on unmet need
This issue of unmet need is a very important matter to address on a sub-
regional basis as a number of local authorities, including Gosport Borough, 
have a dense urban character  and collectively have a significant  housing 
requirement when using the Government’s standardised methodology. It 
is important to recognise that in order to create sustainable communities 
across South Hampshire it is necessary to ensure that: there is sufficient 
land for employment to create local jobs and reduce out-commuting and 
congestion;  there are genuine, affordable and convenient public transport 
choices; and there is sufficient quality open spaces to meet environmental, 
recreational and health needs.  Consequently the Council supports the 
joint working initiative of the PfSH Statement of Common Ground and the 
evidence which will lead to a shared spatial strategy.  This will identify the 
most appropriate locations within the sub-region for new growth to 2036 
and ideally towards 2050 to ensure comprehensive long-term good 
planning for the sub region. As part of the evidence several broad areas 
across South Hampshire will be independently assessed regarding their 
suitability for large scale development considering environmental and 
infrastructure factors.  These will be known as Strategic Development 
Opportunity Areas (SDOAs).

4.5 The Fareham Local Plan identifies two Strategic Growth Areas (SGAs) 
which could potentially meet sub-regional unmet need. These are: an Area 
north of Downend near Wallington; and the area South of Fareham.  This 
Council objects to the SGAs particularly the South Fareham SGA on the 



basis that the sub regional work has yet to be completed on potential 
SDOAs.  Further details are set out in Section 6 of this Report.

4.6
Five year housing supply policy
The FLP:Supplement also includes a five year housing land supply policy 
which states that where it can be demonstrated that the Council does not 
have a five year supply of land for housing against the requirements set 
out in the Local Plan, additional housing sites outside the urban area 
boundary may be permitted where they meet certain criteria including:

 The proposal is relative in scale to the demonstrated five year 
housing land supply shortfall;

 It is sustainably located adjacent to, and well related to, the existing 
urban area boundaries and can be well integrated with the 
neighbouring settlement;

 The proposal is sensitively designed to reflect the landscape 
character and setting of the settlement and to minimise any adverse 
impact on the countryside and, if relevant the Strategic Gaps.

4.7
Comment on housing supply policy
The Council objects to this policy as it implies that if Fareham’s five year 
housing supply is not met the first area of search is outside of the urban 
area boundary.  Instead the policy should refer to sites within urban areas, 
brownfield land, underutilised employment sites, sites close to train 
stations, under-utilised town centre sites such as car parks and shopping 
precincts, consideration of using Council land assets and other public 
sector land, intensification of existing neighbourhoods, as well as 
opportunities to increase densities on existing allocations such as 
Welborne.  These types of sites should be clearly identified as being 
preferential before greenfield land outside the urban area, particularly 
within the Strategic Gap, are considered.   

4.8 The Council also objects to the criterion relating to strategic gaps which is 
also covered in more detail in Section 6.

5 Housing Allocations and maintaining an objection to the HA2 
allocation 

5.1
New allocations
In order to meet its housing requirement the DFLP identifies a number of 
housing allocations across the Plan area. There are only three new 
allocations identified in the Plan, none of which are on the Gosport 
Peninsula.  These are Rookery Farm, Sarisbury (150 dwellings), Fareham 
Town centre (up to 20), Park Gate (5) 

5.2 Newgate Lane South residential allocation (HA2)
This document states it is not re-consulting on the proposed allocation in 
the DFLP (2017) which included the Newgate Lane South allocation known 
as HA2.  However as this site remains identified as an allocation and there 
has been no additional evidence to address any of the Council’s substantial 



concerns it is proposed that the Council reiterates the comments made 
previously on this matter.  

5.3 The allocation of land at Newgate Lane is for between 370 and 475 
dwellings (Policy HA2). A speculative planning application in advance of 
the Local Plan has recently been submitted on the southern portion of the 
site for 99 affordable houses with access off Brookers Lane.  The Council’s 
representations to FBC on the proposal within Fareham Borough is also 
included within this agenda.

Comment on HA2 Allocation
5.4 Members will recall that the proposed allocation is located on the western 

boundary of the Borough, with Tukes Avenue and other residential roads 
(Heron Way, Pettycot Crescent) to the east; and the new route of Newgate 
Lane to the west.  The HMS Collingwood playing fields are situated to the 
north and the Brookers Field recreation ground to the south (as shown in 
Appendix 2 of the Report). The site is primarily agricultural and largely flat.  
The key concerns are re-iterated in Appendix 3 and will form part of this 
Council’s representations to this latest document.

5.5 It is also proposed to make some additional comments in the light of the 
updated Strategic Housing and Employment Land Availability Assessment 
(SHELAA) (Dec 2019).   This provides an assessment of land within 
Fareham Borough that has the potential for future development by 
identifying sites, assessing their suitability to provide housing or 
employment, considering whether such development is achievable on the 
site and the likelihood of development coming forward. This SHELAA 
provides the housing and employment land availability position within 
Fareham Borough as at 1st December 2019 and forms an integral part of 
the evidence base that underpins the Fareham Local Plan 2036.

5.6 The HA2 allocation is identified as three component parts in the document. 
With regard to the southern site it clearly recognises that the introduction 
of junctions along Newgate Lane South Relief Road would interfere with 
the free-flow of traffic which the Relief Road now provides. It adds that, ‘as 
this and all other access would interfere with traffic flows, it is considered 
development of the site would be unsatisfactory. It would be feasible to 
develop the western part of the site from the existing Newgate Lane and 
incorporate measures to improve/relieve Woodcote Lane.’

5.7 Similarly with regard to the middle site the potential for access to Newgate 
Lane South through the construction of a roundabout is considered 
unsatisfactory and a revised option would need to be explored and that 
the identification of a suitable highway access is pending. 

5.8 With regard to the northern site it states that suitable highway access has 
been identified onto Tukes Avenue.  This Council would like to understand 
where this access is located as this has not been identified in the FLP: 
Supplement.  It is important to note that an erratum was issued to the 
DFLP (2017) which withdrew the original proposed access onto Tukes 



Avenue as local homeowners had not been informed or had given their 
permission for an access.

5.9 It is important to note that the SHELAA is an evidence study not a policy 
document however it is necessary to understand whether FBC are proposing 
to amend the HA2 policy.  There are no proposed changes identified in the 
FLP: Supplement and the policy included in the DFLP 2017 referred to access 
off Newgate Lane whereas the evidence in the SHELAA identifies significant 
problems with access off Newgate Lane.  This Council and HCC objected to 
the proposed allocation being accessed off Newgate Lane due to the 
detrimental impact that 475 dwellings directly onto the recent road 
improvements would have on north-south movements on the strategic 
transport corridor. 

5.10 The Council maintains an objection on highway and accessibility grounds 
due to the impact that 475 dwellings would have on the residential roads 
of Bridgemary.  No evidence is provided on the scale of this impact nor 
are there any details provided on the potential access routes.

5.11 In the light of this the Council maintains its objection to the HA2 allocation 
(together with the other reasons set out in Appendix 3) due to these 
accessibility issues and would also question whether the development is 
actually deliverable.  

6 Strategic Growth Areas
6.1 The Development Strategy recognises that FBC has an obligation to work 

with neighbouring authorities in order to identify and address unmet need 
within the region.  As mentioned in Section 4 this work is being undertaken 
through the PfSH which both Fareham and Gosport Borough Councils are 
partners.  PfSH are working on a Statement of Common Ground to identify 
Strategic Development Opportunity Areas (SDOAs) that could be selected 
to meet the unmet needs in the sub-region.  This work will continue through 
2020 with a final presentation to PfSH Joint Committee in early 2021. FBC 
states that it will be an active partner in these discussions.  It adds that the 
Publication (Reg. 19) version will need to address unmet need.

6.2 In anticipation of addressing the issue of unmet need two Strategic Growth 
Areas have been identified which as mentioned above are:  Area north of 
Downend near Wallington; and the area South of Fareham. This includes 
a significant area either side of the route of the Stubbington Bypass 
between Stubbington and Fareham as indicated on the plan in Appendix 
1.

6.3 The FLP: Supplement states that it is FBC’s intention to work with 
developers and site promoters to develop a Council-led masterplan which 
will focus on the delivery of community benefits of good growth.  The policy 
on SGA is re-iterated below:

Any development proposals in the Strategic Growth Areas should 
come forward in conjunction with a masterplan for the area, that 
reflects the principles of the Local Plan, developed by all relevant 



landowners, to ensure that comprehensive development can be 
achieved. 

Proposals will not be permitted which would prejudice the delivery 
of a comprehensive development in advance of a robust 
masterplanning process. 

6.4 With regard to the SGA South of Fareham it states development of an 
area-wide master plan should be informed by a number of high-level 
principles.  These include:

 That the design and layout should be informed by, and consistent 
with, the agreed masterplan

 The settlements of Fareham and Stubbington will continue to be 
separated with a strategic gap in between the settlements

 Ensuring good quality homes within sustainable and safe 
neighbourhoods, in walking distance to a variety of services and 
facilities

 Providing a mix of homes

 That the development links with Rapid Transit bus services 
connecting to Fareham Town Centre and rail station, other 
settlement centres and local employment hubs

 Retains existing rights of way

 Ecological parkland is managed to create a major green 
infrastructure resource and will connect with the Alver and Meon 
valleys through a variety of linked habitats providing opportunities 
for health, recreation and education

 Sports pitch facilities

 Proposals shall provide either directly, or provide the mechanism 
for, the delivery of the following infrastructure:

-  off-site highway improvements and mitigation works;

- Local schools and early-years childcare infrastructure;

- open space including sports provision.

6.5
Comment on Strategic Growth Areas
The Council strongly objects to the Strategic Growth Area based on two 
principles which are set out fully in the rest of this section:

1) They pre-judge the work currently being undertaken by PfSH 
regarding the most appropriate Strategic Development 
Opportunity Areas and that this work should be concluded 
before any SGAs are identified. 



2) That the South of Fareham SGA fails to acknowledge the 
previous concerns made by Gosport Borough Council 
regarding: the issues concerning HA2; the need to preserve a 
transport corridor to, and from, the Peninsula; and the need to 
maintain a strategic gap between Fareham, Gosport, Lee-on-
the-Solent and Stubbington and that any significant 
development would affect the long established integrity and 
function of the Strategic Gap.

6.6

1) PfSH work

The PfSH work on SDOAs is in the process of being procured in which an 
independent consultant will consider the appropriateness of a number of 
sites to deliver housing need in South Hampshire to 2036 and beyond.  
This includes a number of broad areas across South Hampshire as well 
as the potential to intensify development on currently identified major 
development areas. 

6.7 It is considered necessary for the findings of this work to be concluded and 
an approach agreed by PfSH Joint Committee before these Strategic 
Growth Areas are identified.  The identification of SGAs could prejudice 
this work and fails to recognise this Council’s significant concerns 
regarding the South Fareham SGA.  Alternative sites may be more 
suitable and if the SGAs are already identified in an emerging Fareham 
Local Plan there may be reluctance to bring these sites forward in other 
parts of the sub region.

6.8 For example there may be opportunities to increase the residential 
quantum at Welborne itself by increasing densities.   Even marginal 
density increases in areas where the current proposed densities are ‘up to 
30 dwelling per hectare’ (dph) and ‘up to 35 dph’ could yield significant 
increases in the number of dwellings at this site.

6.9 By considering further options for a railway halt at Welborne would also 
facilitate higher densities. Given the restricted supply of land in the South 
Hampshire sub-region building at exceptionally low densities would 
represent a missed opportunity as the PfSH authorities plan forward to 
2036 and onto 2050. Such increases in densities would make public 
transport and other facilities more viable and would also reduce the need 
to develop in the Fareham, Gosport, Lee-on-the-Solent, and Stubbington 
(FGLS) Strategic Gap.

6.10 It is clear from the NPPF that planning policies and decisions should 
support development that makes efficient use of land.  It states that where 
there is an existing or anticipated shortage of land for meeting identified 
housing needs it is especially important that planning policies and 
decisions avoid homes being built at low densities and ensure the 
developments make optimal use of the potential for each site.



6.11

2) Specific issues regarding the South Fareham SGA

It is clear that the Fareham SGA policy will affect the function and integrity 
of the Strategic Gap which has previously been agreed by both Councils 
and undermines the sub regional objectives of maintaining a Strategic 
Gap. Such development will have a detrimental impact on existing 
residents in Gosport, Lee-on-the-Solent, Stubbington, Hillhead and 
southern Fareham.

6.12 There is currently no detailed evidence available regarding the scale of 
development proposed and consequently the likely impacts on traffic 
generation, infrastructure and the environment. Whilst it is recognised that 
this is difficult at this stage as the overall quantum is not yet known it would 
be useful to have an understanding of whether various environmental and 
infrastructure constraints have been considered. 

6.13 Some of the Council’s key concerns relating to the Strategic Growth Area 
relate to the principles of developing in the FGLS Strategic Gap which 
primarily relate to the following themes which are detailed further below:

 Transport and Accessibility

 Air quality 

 The principle of maintaining a Strategic Gap to prevent coalescence 
and protect the identity of settlements.

 Protecting the Strategic Gap to deliver multi-functional benefits for 
local communities

6.14 Transport and accessibility: One of the Council’s primary concerns is 
the impact of potential new development, including any additional 
allocations in the SGA and the proposed HA2 allocation, will have on the 
effectiveness of the strategic transport corridor through the existing 
Strategic Gap.  It is considered that any allocations which have access 
directly onto the recently improved Newgate Lane and the proposed 
Stubbington Bypass will negate the benefits these proposals will deliver to 
improve accessibly to, and from, the Peninsula. 

6.15 These improvements are aimed at addressing existing acute transport 
infrastructure deficiencies, not to enable development on greenfield sites 
directly adjacent to the routes. Instead this improved infrastructure can 
bring regeneration benefits to difficult brownfield sites in Gosport and 
make them more attractive to investors.  The NPPF is very clear that 
policies should promote the development of under-utilised land and 
buildings especially if this would help to meet identified needs for housing 
where land supply is constrained. 

6.16 The issue of maintaining an effective transport corridor is imperative for 
Gosport’s future prosperity.   The Stubbington Bypass route is the only 
opportunity to improve vehicular access to the Borough. If the benefits of 
the Stubbington Bypass are negated by significant development being 



built with access directly onto the Bypass, this last opportunity would be 
lost and there would be a real sense that Gosport has been ‘blocked in’. 

6.17 This would perhaps be less significant if Gosport had its own railway 
station and had a reasonable job density rate with limited out-commuting.  
However this is certainly not the case. 

6.18 Gosport has the lowest job density in the South East of England and one 
of the lowest in England at only 0.5 jobs per resident person of working 
age.  Such a low job density has significant implications for the Borough 
including the considerable scale of daily out-commuting which puts 
tremendous pressure on the existing road system resulting in acute traffic 
congestion and high levels of air pollution as evidenced in the Air Quality 
Management Areas identified within Fareham Borough at the north end of 
the Peninsula.  This congestion results in the road network reaching full 
capacity and an extended peak time spreading on key routes.  This actual 
congestion as well as the wider perception of congestion that exists can 
act as a disincentive for business and employment investment. Gosport 
has limited transport options with no fixed rail link and hence the 
effectiveness of the small number of road routes from Gosport is even 
more important.

6.19 Specific accessibility issues relating to the SGA and Newgate Lane 
East It is likely that a significant proportion of traffic from any development 
in the SGA will require access along Newgate Lane towards Fareham 
Town Centre. It is important to recognise that Newgate Lane East and other 
associated improvements were designed to achieve the following:

 improving access to the Peninsula including the Solent Enterprise 
Zone at Daedalus;

 increasing capacity and easing existing congestion on the route;
 creating fewer interruptions to traffic flow caused by turning traffic, 

or on-road cyclists;
 improving the alignment for safety reasons.

6.20 These objectives would be undermined by potential development within a  
SGA.  It was not intended that the strategic highways improvements would 
facilitate new housing development.  Gosport Borough Council is very 
concerned that development within the SGA, together with HA2, will have 
a detrimental impact on the existing significant congestion problems on 
the Gosport Peninsula and detract from recent and proposed 
improvements that aim to improve traffic flow to, and from, the Peninsula.  
This is critical for the future economic prosperity of the Borough including 
achieving the full potential of the Enterprise Zone.

6.21 The earlier DFLP was accompanied by an Interim Transport Assessment 
for the DFLP allocations (Oct 2017) which recognises that the current 
Volume over Capacity (v/c) exceed 100% in the PM peak on Newgate 
Lane and is approaching available practical capacity in the AM peak 
resulting in significant congestion. Consequently, it is already recognised 
that traffic exceeds the available capacity on this strategic route. Table 2 



summarises information from this document which highlights that this 
situation is predicted to worsen over the period to 2036 and consequently 
the report recognises that Newgate Lane will experience ‘more noticeable 
increases in traffic flow.’

Table 2: Road capacity on Newgate Lane
Volume over Capacity (v/c) on Newgate Lane
2015 2036 Baseline: 

Existing adopted 
local plan 
commitments (S 
Hants) with 
planned 
transport 
improvements*1 

2036 Baseline  
plus DFLP 
allocations*2

AM 83% 98% 100%
PM 102% 106% 107%

 including Stubbington Bypass and Newgate Lane improvements
*2 this does not include any potential growth in Gosport Borough arising from the Gosport Borough 
Local Plan Review

6.22 With any further allocations within this area this situation would be 
exacerbated still further plus it will be necessary to take into account the 
additional allocations being put forward as part of the emerging work for 
the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2036.

6.23 The latest transport modelling work suggests numerous junctions in the 
area will suffer from severe or significant impacts over the period to 2036 
when just taking into account existing permissions and adopted Local Plan 
allocations.  This work incorporates committed transport schemes (such 
as the Stubbington Bypass).  This situation is further exacerbated by the 
proposed Fareham Local Plan allocations and does not appear to have 
included any proposed development in the SGA, as the potential quantum 
of development is not yet known.  It is clear however that any development 
in the SGA would have a detrimental impact on an already severely 
congested network on the Peninsula.  Further work is to be undertaken as 
part of a Transport Assessment which will consider if there are any 
appropriate mitigation measures. This strengthens the case that such a 
designation should await the outcome of the aforementioned PfSH work 
as there are likely to be more appropriate locations for major development 
which have genuine transport choices in less congested parts of the sub-
region or beyond.   The PfSH work will include transport modelling work.

6.24 Potential impact on the effectiveness of the Stubbington Bypass: It 
is important to note that the DFLP (2017) stated in paragraph 11.46 that 
the Stubbington Bypass is not being provided with an intention of serving 
or facilitating additional new homes. 

6.25 The DFLP recognised that this route forms part of Hampshire County 
Council’s plan for improving access to Fareham and Gosport and seeks to 
ease congestion, improve safety and the area’s economic prosperity by 



encouraging investment and regeneration, including at the Solent 
Enterprise Zone at Daedalus. The accompanying text in the DFLP 
acknowledged this will create a reliable route for traffic wishing to travel 
from the Gosport Peninsula westwards towards the M27 at Junction 9, in 
conjunction with recently completed works at St Margaret’s Roundabout 
on the A27, and works underway to upgrade the A27 between the 
Titchfield Gyratory and Segensworth to two lanes in both directions.  It 
stated that the bypass is not being provided with an intention of serving or 
facilitating additional new homes. GBC consider that FBC’s position in the 
DFLP is still valid and should be maintained. There is currently no 
information available regarding the impact that the SGA will have on the 
effectiveness of the Stubbington Bypass and how development will be 
accessed.

6.26 Air quality: Any additional traffic on Newgate Lane is likely to have an 
impact on the Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) at the north end of 
Newgate Lane and Gosport Road and therefore it would be necessary to 
include measures mentioned in Policy INF2 of the DFLP which promotes 
sustainable transport to mitigate this impact. This is likely to be difficult for 
allocations in the Strategic Gap of this scale with limited public transport 
choice.

6.27 The principle of maintaining a Strategic Gap to prevent coalescence 
and protect the identity of settlements: The Strategic Gap is identified 
in the GBLP (Policy LP3) and FBC’s current Local Plan (Policy CS22 of 
the Core Strategy). GBC and FBC have worked collaboratively in the past 
to define the boundaries of the Strategic Gap and have been successful 
in maintaining a functional gap and visual separation between the 
settlements.  

6.28 The Supplement consultation is a significant change in the long-
established position as it appears to accept large-scale development in 
the Strategic Gap.  This Council strongly opposes this change in approach 
and considers that the additional residential proposals will have a 
significant and detrimental impact on the current form and function of the 
Strategic Gap and no amount of ‘careful planning’ would be able to 
mitigate these impacts.

6.29 The sub-regional PUSH Spatial Position Statement states that Councils 
should identify in their Local Plans strategic countryside gaps of sub-
regional importance and that these gaps are important in maintaining the 
sense of place, settlement identity and countryside setting for the sub 
region and local communities. It recognises that gaps can provide the 
space for necessary uses such as recreation areas, transport corridors 
and environmental mitigation.

6.30 FBC’s current Policy CS22 states that ‘development proposals will not be 
permitted either individually or cumulatively where it significantly affects 
the integrity of the gap and the physical and visual separation of the 
settlements’. The Policy recognises that maintaining separation will 



prevent coalescence of the settlements in this densely settled part of 
South Hampshire.  

6.31 The justification text states that gaps between settlements help define and 
maintain the separate identity of individual settlements and have strong 
local support. It adds that Strategic Gaps do not necessarily have intrinsic 
landscape value but are important in maintaining the settlement pattern, 
keeping individual settlements separate and providing opportunities for 
green infrastructure/green corridors. It acknowledges that continuing 
pressure for high levels of development mean that maintaining gaps 
continues to be justified.

6.32 It is considered the text of Policy CS22 remains relevant in relation to the 
strategic gap.  Indeed the current boundary has been supported by a 
Planning Inspector as recently as May 2015.  In his report into the 
Examination in Public for the Fareham Local Plan Part 2, the Inspector 
refers to FBC’s evidence regarding the review of Strategic Gaps and 
states,  

‘although the review did not specifically take into account the route 
of the Stubbington by-pass and the Newgate Lane improvements, 
there is no reason to conclude that these proposals would justify 
altering the boundary of the gap in those locations. Having visited 
the area I agree with the Council that the gap between Fareham and 
Stubbington is justified in order to retain visual separation and that 
the proposed road improvements would not justify a revision to the 
boundary. The Council’s approach is sound.’

6.34 The DFLP (2017) also included a policy relating to Strategic Gaps (Policy 
SP6) which continues to prevent the coalescence of urban areas and to 
maintain the separate identity of settlements.  It also identified a Strategic 
Gap between ‘Fareham/Bridgemary and Stubbington/Lee-on-the-Solent’.  
It stated, ‘development proposals will not be permitted where they cause 
severe adverse harm to the physical and visual separation of settlements.’  
The justification text acknowledged that, ‘retaining the open farmland gap 
between Fareham and Stubbington is critical in preventing the physical 
coalescence of these two settlements together with maintaining the sense 
of separation’. It also clearly stated in Paragraph 4.39 that, ‘further to the 
east, retaining the gap will help maintain the separation of Stubbington and 
Lee-on-the-Solent from Fareham and Bridgemary along with maintaining 
the separate identify of Peel Common.’ This Council agrees that this gap 
should be maintained.

6.35 Allocations in the Strategic Gap would also contradict FBC’s own evidence 
which seeks to protect the strategic gap as set out in the Fareham 
Landscape Assessment (2017) which incorporates a review of the 
Strategic Gap.

6.36 The Council’s previously mentioned comments relating to the Woodcot 
area which includes the land covered by the proposed HA2 Newgate Lane 



allocation are set out in Appendix 3 of this Report. The study also includes 
a character area which relates to the gap between Fareham and 
Stubbington covered by the SGA. There is a specific section on the Review 
of the Strategic Gap Designation.  It concludes, 

‘This area is a cohesive agricultural landscape which performs 
multiple roles in respect of the primary and secondary purposes and 
functions of the Strategic Gap. Even minor encroachment beyond the 
existing, strong settlement boundary along the southern edge of 
Fareham could potentially disrupt local settlement pattern and 
character and have an adverse effect on the Gap functions and the 
overall integrity of the agricultural landscape. There may be some 
scope for very modest ‘rounding off’ of Stubbington on its northern 
edges, within existing parcels of land where development could be 
integrated without unacceptable impacts. Overall, however, it is 
recommended that the Gap boundaries remain tightly drawn around 
the existing settlement edges, with allowance for development only in 
exceptional circumstances where the purposes and integrity of the 
Gap can be maintained and significant GI and other benefits would 
result.’

6.37 The Council agrees with the findings of the Study regarding the importance 
of the Fareham/Stubbington Gap area to be maintained. These findings 
also raise the question whether there may be preferable locations for very 
limited allocations here before the HA2 allocation is considered as the 
evidence on the Woodcot area concludes, 

‘Even minor encroachment beyond existing settlement boundaries 
could have an adverse effect on these functions and the overall 
integrity of the landscape and Strategic Gap. It is recommended that 
the Gap boundaries remain unchanged.’

6.38 Gosport Borough Council agrees with these findings set out in the 
Fareham Landscape Assessment and considers that these areas should 
remain an integral part of the Strategic Gap fulfilling their current function.

6.39 Whilst recognising that circumstances have changed in terms of the need 
to accommodate additional housing numbers it is considered that there is  
an even stronger imperative to protect these important strips of land 
between settlements in the form of the Strategic Gap which certainly 
continue to perform the long-established planning function that both 
Councils have worked together to protect.

6.40 It is also recognised that the local plan process is the appropriate time to 
review such designations, however it is considered that the proposed 
changes will affect the integrity of the remaining gap by significantly 
reducing its width. This and other proposed residential allocations by their 
sheer scale will undoubtedly harm the character of the gap and will 
diminish the physical and visual separation of the settlements.  



6.41 Protecting the Strategic Gap to deliver multi-functional benefits for 
local communities: This Council proposes that we work together with 
FBC bilaterally and as part of PfSH to find a long-term strategy for the 
strategic gaps which serve a number of existing functions that could be 
further diversified. These functions include:

 Strategic transport corridor for critical road infrastructure to, and 
from the Peninsula including the recent Newgate Lane 
improvements and the Stubbington Bypass.

 The Daedalus employment areas which have been designed to 
reflect the character of this part of the Gap

 Utilities including the Peel Common Waste Water Treatment Works

 Sustainable power - Solar farms and IFA2

 Recreational land to improve cycle and walking routes to facilitate 
countryside access between the communities and links with 
Titchfield and the Meon Valley.

 Land for environmental mitigation

- Land required for nitrate mitigation

- Land required to deflect recreational pressure from sensitive 
coastal habitats and/or create Brent Goose refuges to allow 
development to take place in more sustainable locations

- Land required for biodiversity net gain

- Land required for carbon storage

  Maintaining local food production 

6.42 Therefore as part of resolving the outstanding issues, to be set out in the 
Statement of Common Ground, that FBC considers the option of 
establishing a multi-functional corridor which includes the various uses set 
out above.  It is considered appropriate that the agreed joint long term 
strategy would include the whole strategic gap including areas within 
Gosport Borough to ensure that recreational and environmental benefits 
are taken together.

7 The Natural Environment
This section includes policies relating to landscape, trees and hedges, 
flood risk, climate change and air quality.

7.1
Climate Change Policy
The climate change policy promotes a mitigation and adaptation to climate 
change through amongst other things, a development strategy that 
minimises the need to travel by allocating sites and generally directing 
development to locations with better services and facilities, or where they 



are capable of being improved.  This Council disputes that the overly 
flexible approach being promoted by the five year housing land policy, 
which presumes in favour of out of settlement sites when there is no five 
year housing supply, is consistent with this Policy.  Similarly the proposed 
SGA policy will exacerbate travel by private car. It is considered that the 
PfSH work on SDOAs across South Hampshire needs to consider the 
most sustainable locations for development first.

7.2
Air quality policy
Similarly it is difficult at this stage to envisage how the proposals in the 
existing Strategic Gap including the HA2 allocation and the potential in 
Strategic Growth Area can meet the requirements of the proposed air 
quality policy.  This states that development will be permitted if it positively 
contributes towards the delivery of the Council’s Air Quality Action Plan by 
mitigating the effects of development on air quality within the Air Quality 
Management Areas and/or any Clean Air Zones.  Given that the HA2 and 
any SGA sites will be largely car borne with a significant proportion of 
traffic using Newgate Lane it is difficult to understand how these will 
positively contribute to the air quality with in the AQMA at Quay Street.
 

8 Statement of Common Ground
8.1 In accordance with the Government’s latest version of the NPPF, local 

planning authorities should produce, maintain and keep up to date a 
Statement of Common Ground (SCG) to highlight agreements and any 
outstanding disagreements on cross boundary strategic issues with 
neighbouring authorities and other relevant bodies. This forms part of each 
local planning authority’s evidence for their respective emerging Local 
Plans and in particular its requirement under 2011 Localism Act regarding 
the Duty to Cooperate. This document is examined by an Inspector at the 
Examination in Public stage.

8.2 As mentioned previously, an important multilateral Statement of Common 
Ground is being prepared by the PfSH authorities which will set out a 
development strategy for South Hampshire for the period to 2050 with 
more detailed elements up to the period to 2036.  It will consider the 
quantum and broad locations of residential development including unmet 
need as well as sub regional demands for employment floorspace.  These 
will be considered as part of an independent assessment of the SDOAs. 
This work is imperative to ascertain the most appropriate locations for 
development and what form of infrastructure is required to sustainably 
support such development given the Government’s legal requirement for 
the UK to deliver net zero carbon emissions by 2050.

8.3 In addition it is recognised that there are bilateral cross-boundary issues 
between Gosport and Fareham Borough Councils that need to be 
considered.  This SCG needs to formally signed off by both authorities and 
there needs to be ongoing governance to update it at each stage of plan 
making by each authority including GBC’s Regulation 18 Consultation 
document which is likely to be produced in September. 



8.4 This SCG is currently being prepared in accordance with Paragraph 27 of 
the NPPF1 and the relevant section of the Planning Practice Guidance on 
Maintaining Effective Cooperation2.  It has also followed guidance 
prepared by the Planning Advisory Service (PAS) on this matter.

8.5 It is proposed that the representations set out in the report are incorporated 
in the emerging SCG and that this document will be signed by the Chair of 
the Economic Development Board. It will also need to be signed off by 
Fareham Borough Council at a similar time.  Once a common position is 
agreed this will then be placed on the respective websites and updated at 
each subsequent stage in the Plan-making process. A sample of the 
document is included in Appendix 4 which highlights a potential approach 
together with the scoping of issues that a SCG can cover.  This has yet to 
be agreed with Fareham Borough Council but it is considered useful to 
inform Members of an anticipated approach.  

9 Next steps
9.1 The FLP: Supplement consultation is due to end on Sunday 1st March with 

the next round of Consultation at the Regulation 19 due in the Spring. 

10 Risk Assessment
10.1 Failure to respond to the consultation documents from Fareham Borough 

Council could result in the development of policies and proposals which 
are likely to be unfavourable to our community and its environment and be 
prejudicial to the development of Gosport’s economy.

Financial Services 
comments:

There are no financial issues with this report

Legal Services 
comments:

Included within the report

Equality and Diversity FBC will produce their own Equality and Diversity 
statement to accompany the Local Plan

Service Improvement 
Plan implications:

None

Council Plan: Proposals may have implications on developing our 
economy.

Risk Assessment: See section 10
Background papers: Fareham Local Plan 2036: Supplement (in Members’ 

Room)

Economic Development Board Report- 23rd July 2019

Economic Development Board Report- 6th December 
2017

1 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/81
0197/NPPF_Feb_2019_revised.pdf 
2 https://www.gov.uk/guidance/plan-making#maintaining-effective-cooperation 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/810197/NPPF_Feb_2019_revised.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/810197/NPPF_Feb_2019_revised.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/plan-making#maintaining-effective-cooperation


Appendices Appendix 1: Development Strategy Plan
Appendix 2: plan of Newgate Lane South Allocation 
(HA2)(as included in the original DFLP 2017)
Appendix 3: Re-iteration of comments made to the Draft 
Fareham Local Plan (2017) relating to the Newgate 
Lane South allocation - which will form part of the 
representation made to FBC in relation the FLP: 
Supplement.
Appendix 4: Indicative format for a bilateral Statement 
of Common Ground between Fareham Borough 
Council and Gosport Borough Council

Report author/ Lead 
Officer:

Jayson Grygiel, Manager of Planning Policy 



Appendix 1: Development Strategy Plan



Appendix 2: Newgate Lane South-HA2 Plan



Appendix 3: Re-iteration of comments made to the Draft Fareham Local 
Plan (2017) relating to the Newgate Lane South allocation 

 That this Council maintains its objection in full to the proposed residential 
allocation at Newgate Lane (referred to in the previous Draft Fareham Local 
Plan (DFLP) (2017) as HA2) for the reasons set out below:

- The proposal would physically and visually diminish the long-established 
Strategic Gap between Fareham, Gosport, Lee-on-the-Solent and 
Stubbington;

- The proposal will negate the benefits provided by the recent improvements 
to Newgate Lane with a negative impact on traffic flow and increased 
congestion to the detriment of Gosport residents and the local economy 
including accessibility to the Solent Enterprise Zone at Daedalus;

- The proposal will significantly harm the amenities of local Gosport residents 
with the introduction of new access points to existing residential areas, 
which due to the scale of the proposal would lead to a significant increase 
of traffic on residential roads;

- The proposal, as previously described in the DFLP is very car dependent 
with no provision for public transport.  This would exacerbate the number of 
trips using Newgate Lane;

- There is insufficient information on supporting infrastructure required 
including education, medical and community facilities.

These are set out below:

Strategic Gap
A3.1 In order to accommodate the Newgate Lane residential allocation the DFLP 

proposes to amend the Strategic Gap between ‘Fareham/Bridgemary and 
Stubbington/Lee-on-the-Solent’, which is identified in the GBLP (Policy 
LP3) and FBC’s current Local Plan (Policy CS22 of the Core Strategy). 
GBC and FBC have worked collaboratively in the past to define the 
boundaries of the Strategic Gap and have been successful in maintaining 
a functional gap and visual separation between the settlements.  

A3.2 The sub-regional PUSH Spatial Position Statement states that Councils 
should identify in their Local Plans strategic countryside gaps of sub-
regional importance and that these gaps are important in maintaining the 
sense of place, settlement identity and countryside setting for the sub 
region and local communities. It recognises that gaps can provide the 
space for necessary uses such as recreation areas, transport corridors and 
environmental mitigation.

A3.3 FBC’s current Policy CS22 states that ‘development proposals will not be 
permitted either individually or cumulatively where it significantly affects the 
integrity of the gap and the physical and visual separation of the 
settlements’. The Policy recognises that maintaining separation will prevent 



coalescence of the settlements in this densely settled part of South 
Hampshire.  

A3.4 The justification text states that gaps between settlements help define and 
maintain the separate identity of individual settlements and have strong 
local support. It adds that Strategic Gaps do not necessarily have intrinsic 
landscape value but are important in maintaining the settlement pattern, 
keeping individual settlements separate and providing opportunities for 
green infrastructure/green corridors. It acknowledges that continuing 
pressure for high levels of development mean that maintaining gaps 
continues to be justified.

A3.5 It is considered that this remains relevant in the case of the Newgate Lane 
area.  Indeed the current boundary has been supported by a Planning 
Inspector as recently as May 2015.  In his report into the Examination in 
Public for the Fareham Local Plan Part 2, the Inspector refers to FBC’s 
evidence regarding the review of Strategic Gaps and states,  

‘although the review did not specifically take into account the route of 
the Stubbington by-pass and the Newgate Lane improvements, there 
is no reason to conclude that these proposals would justify altering the 
boundary of the gap in those locations. Having visited the area I agree 
with the Council that the gap between Fareham and Stubbington is 
justified in order to retain visual separation and that the proposed road 
improvements would not justify a revision to the boundary. The 
Council’s approach is sound.’ 

A3.6 The latest DFLP also includes a policy relating to Strategic Gaps (Policy 
SP6) which continues to prevent the coalescence of urban areas and to 
maintain the separate identity of settlements.  It also identifies a Strategic 
Gap between ‘Fareham/Bridgemary and Stubbington/Lee-on-the-Solent’.  
It states, ‘development proposals will not be permitted where they cause 
severe adverse harm to the physical and visual separation of settlements’.  
The justification text acknowledges that, ‘retaining the open farmland gap 
between Fareham and Stubbington is critical in preventing the physical 
coalescence of these two settlements together with maintaining the sense 
of separation’. It also clearly states in Paragraph 4.39 that, ‘further to the 
east, retaining the gap will help maintain the separation of Stubbington and 
Lee-on-the-Solent from Fareham and Bridgemary along with maintaining 
the separate identify of Peel Common.’ This therefore appears to contradict 
the removal of the Newgate Lane area from the Strategic Gap.

A3.7 The proposed removal of this land from the Strategic Gap also appears to 
be at odds with FBC’s own supporting evidence. The Fareham Landscape 
Assessment (2017) incorporates a review of the Strategic Gap designation 
including the ‘Woodcot area’ which includes the land covered by the 
proposed Newgate Lane allocation. It concludes, 

‘This is a cohesive area of undeveloped landscape which performs 
an important role in respect of the primary purposes of the Strategic 
Gap i.e. in defining the edges, separate identity and settings of 



Fareham and Gosport, preventing their coalescence. Even minor 
encroachment beyond existing settlement boundaries could have an 
adverse effect on these functions and the overall integrity of the 
landscape and Strategic Gap. It is recommended that the Gap 
boundaries remain unchanged.’

A3.8 Gosport Borough Council agrees with these findings set out in the Fareham 
Landscape Assessment and considers that the Woodcot area should 
remain an integral part of the Strategic Gap.

A3.9 Whilst it is recognised that the local plan process is the appropriate time to 
review such designations it is considered that the proposed change at 
Newgate Lane will affect the integrity of the remaining gap by significantly 
reducing its width. The residential proposal by its sheer scale will 
undoubtedly harm the integrity of the gap and will diminish the physical and 
visual separation of the settlements.  

Transport and accessibility
A3.10 The Council also objects to the proposed allocation due to the potential 

negative impacts on the new Newgate Lane route. The new route was 
designed to achieve the following:

 improving access to the Peninsula including the Solent Enterprise 
Zone at Daedalus;

 increasing capacity and easing existing congestion on the route;
 creating fewer interruptions to traffic flow caused by turning traffic, 

or on-road cyclists;
 improving the alignment for safety reasons.

A3.11 These objectives would be undermined by the proposed development.  It 
was not intended that the improvements would facilitate new housing 
development.  

A3.12 The DFLP is accompanied by an Interim Transport Assessment for the 
DFLP allocations (Oct 2017) which  recognises that the current Volume 
over Capacity (v/c) exceed 100% in the PM peak on Newgate Lane and is 
approaching available practical capacity in the AM peak resulting in 
significant congestion. Consequently it is already recognised that traffic 
exceeds the available capacity on this strategic route. Table 3 summarises 
information from this document which highlights that this situation is 
predicted to worsen over the period to 2036 and consequently the report 
recognises that Newgate Lane will experience ‘more noticeable increases 
in traffic flow.’



Table 3: Road capacity on Newgate Lane
Volume over Capacity (v/c) on Newgate Lane
2015 2036 Baseline: 

Existing adopted 
local plan 
commitments (S 
Hants) with 
planned 
transport 
improvements*1 

2036 Baseline  
plus DFLP 
allocations*2

AM 83% 98% 100%
PM 102% 106% 107%

 including Stubbington Bypass and Newgate Lane improvements
*2 this does not include any potential growth in Gosport Borough arising from the Gosport Borough 
Local Plan Review

A3.13 At the present time this allocation has not been assessed by the Local 
Highway Authority to determine the implications on the highway capacity 
of Newgate Lane and no modelling work has been assessed to consider 
the trip generation from this level of development, either in terms of 
numbers of additional vehicles or their likely distribution on the highway 
network or highway safety. Therefore the Council has no option but to 
object to the proposed allocation in the DFLP on this issue at this stage. 
Gosport Borough Council is very concerned that the proposed allocation 
will have a detrimental impact on the existing significant congestion 
problems on the Gosport Peninsula and detract from recent and proposed 
improvements that aim to improve traffic flow to, and from, the Peninsula.  
This is critical for the future economic prosperity of the Borough including 
achieving the full potential of the Enterprise Zone.

A3.14 The north-south movements along Newgate Lane should not be hindered 
by any proposed new access arrangements for the proposed allocation 
and the Council objects to any proposals which will significantly hinder this 
flow.  A new access off the proposed roundabout will introduce an 
interruption to traffic flow, particularly as it is envisaged to serve the whole 
development and that by its location and limited transport choice the 
proposed allocation would be very car-dependent. Indeed the supporting 
FBC Sustainability Appraisal   concedes that the ‘majority of sites [in the 
DFLP] are sustainably located which will improve accessibility and 
encourage travel by sustainable modes, although the urban fringe sites at 
Funtley Road and Newgate Lane South are less sustainably located.’

A3.15 Due to the lack of detailed available information it is not known what the 
likely impacts will be on the links and junctions further north e.g. the 
northern section of Newgate Lane, the Longfield Avenue roundabout, the 
northern section of the A32 and the Quay Street roundabouts and beyond 
to the M27 Junction 11. Additionally, vehicles travelling south from the site 
will also reduce the capacity of the recently improved Peel Common 
Roundabout, which may also have significant implications for traffic 
queuing on Rowner Road.  



A3.16 Given that the proposed allocation may well negate the benefits gained by 
the Newgate Lane road improvements it will also be necessary to consider 
whether this site together with other potential residential developments on 
the south side of Fareham could cumulatively have a detrimental impact 
on the function and objectives of the Stubbington Bypass.  It is important 
to note that the DFLP states in paragraph 11.46 that the Stubbington 
Bypass is not being provided with an intention of serving or facilitating 
additional new homes. FBC is therefore not being consistent in its policy 
approach between the Stubbington Bypass and the Newgate Lane 
improvements.

A3.17 The Newgate Lane allocation policy (HA2) includes a criterion that makes 
provision for off-site highway improvements and mitigation works, however, 
this Council requires further details of such measures, and questions 
whether the principle of any proposal at this site would be able to 
satisfactorily mitigate these impacts. 

A3.18 The Council is also concerned that the proposed allocation would not meet 
the requirements of the DFLP sustainable transport policy (Policy INF2). 
Amongst other things, this policy aims to ensure that development:

 does not demonstrate a severe cumulative impact (causing 
demonstrable harm) on the operation, safety or accessibility to the 
local or strategic highway networks; and

 mitigates impacts on the local or strategic highway networks arising 
from the development itself, or the cumulative effects of 
development on the network, through provision of improvements or 
enhancements to the existing network to accommodate additional 
traffic; or contributions towards necessary or relevant transport 
improvements.

A3.19 In the light of the above policy it is considered that the proposed allocation 
may not be able to provide any meaningful improvements to satisfy these 
requirements given the current and ongoing access issues to and from the 
Gosport Peninsula.

A3.20 The DFLP originally proposed two other vehicular accesses (in additional 
to Newgate Lane) which link the potential new allocation to the existing 
residential communities in Gosport.  This includes Brookers Lane as a 
secondary access for a limited number of dwellings.

A3.21 The other proposed access off Tukes Avenue has now been withdrawn 
following a recently issued addendum by FBC which reads,   ‘The site 
promoter has advised Fareham Borough Council that the potential access 
identified via the demolition of two houses on Tukes Avenue (165 and 167) 
is a factual error.  The site promoter has confirmed that potential vehicle 
access via these properties is not being pursued'

A3.22 Notwithstanding that the residents of these and adjacent properties were 
most unfortunately not previously notified of these proposals, it is not clear 
from this statement whether the site promoter will be seeking an alternative 



access on the eastern boundary.  It is considered that any such access 
points from housing areas within Gosport, will add to traffic on the local 
highway network within Gosport, which again has not yet been quantified 
in terms of number/distribution and junction/link capacity.  The nature and 
scale of these access points will have a direct impact on their 
use/attractiveness, particularly if through routes are created. The creation 
of such accesses may create rat-runs through the existing residential areas 
within Gosport, due to perceived journey time savings compared with 
joining Rowner Road/Peel Common Roundabout. This could be 
exacerbated with the development of the Stubbington Bypass.

A3.23 Despite the addendum significant concerns remain regarding any 
proposed access onto Tukes Avenue. These include:

 The amenities of neighbouring residents as an access road will 
serve a considerable number of dwellings;

 The capacity of Tukes Avenue and adjoining roads to take the 
additional traffic; and

 The proximity to facilities such as Woodcot Primary School and the 
impact on pedestrian safety.

A3.24 There is no mention of improving public transport with regard to the 
proposed allocation.  This needs further consideration to reduce the site’s 
car dependency which would add further pressure on Newgate Lane.  This 
will also have a detrimental impact on the existing Air Quality Management 
Areas within Fareham. It will be necessary to explore strategic transport 
options such as the potential for a new bus rapid transit link which could 
connect Lee-on-the-Solent, Daedalus, Newgate Lane, and the Busway 
through to Fareham.  

A3.25 Cycle and pedestrian links to the adjacent Bridgemary and Peel Common 
are identified in Policy HA2.

Residential amenities and design 
A3.26 Any development of this scale on greenfield land will create significant 

concerns from existing residents particularly in areas immediately adjoining 
the site. It will be critical that their amenities are not harmed by any future 
proposals on this site and this should be reflected in Policy HA2.

School provision
A3.27 Provision is included in the policy to ensure improvements to local schools 

and early-years childcare (as identified by the Local Education Authority).  
However, there is insufficient detail of how local school places could be 
affected by the proposals. It will be necessary to understand the impact of 
the new housing development on local schools as any development on this 
site is likely to include a high proportion of households with children.  

Community facilities
A3.28 It will also be important to understand whether any new development at 

Newgate Lane can be sufficiently supported by other community facilities 
in the area including health facilities (such as GPs) and community hall 



provision and whether it is necessary to provide new community facilities 
as part of the development. Consequently without such information such 
proposals cannot be supported.

A3.29 Policy CF1 of the DFLP recognises the need for community facilities as 
part of large residential developments and that these should be delivered 
to prescribed timescales to meet the needs of the community.  The DFLP 
specifically mentions Bridgemary School as the primary location for 
community facilities (sport pitches, courts, hall and stage, and various 
meeting and conference rooms for hire). It states that these facilities are 
generally less than 1km from within the allocation and that it is not 
considered necessary for additional space to be provided with the 
allocation. 

A3.30 Policy LP32 of the GBLP requires the consideration of community facilities 
for new residential developments (normally for sites of 100 dwellings or 
more).  It is therefore considered appropriate for FBC to further assess the 
community requirements of a development of this scale and include such 
provision within Policy HA2.  

Open space
A3.31 The proposals as set out in Policy HA2 include a number of open space 

requirements including:
 Neighbourhood Equipped Area of Play (NEAP) and a Multi-Use 

Games Area for older children on-site; 
 Improvements to existing off-site sports facilities at Brookers Field 

and Tukes Avenue which are GBC-owned facilities.
 The potential to take a financial contribution to improve sports pitch 

provision and associated facilities at Tukes Avenue Open Space 
and/or Brookers Field Recreation Ground.

A3.32 It will be necessary to ensure such provision meets the requirements of any 
new community without affecting that enjoyed by existing residents.

Air quality
A3.33 Any additional traffic on Newgate Lane is likely to have an impact on the 

Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) at the north end of Newgate Lane 
and Gosport Road and therefore it would be necessary to include 
measures mentioned in Policy INF2 specifically to mitigate this impact for 
this development allocation. This may be difficult for a development of this 
scale with limited public transport choice. The issue of air quality is 
highlighted in the Interim Traffic Assessment which notes that in January 
2017, Fareham and Gosport Environmental Health Partnership issued the 
Annual Status Report 2016, which concluded that both the existing 
AQMAs need to be extended as locations outside of the AQMAs had 
exceeded the annual mean NO2 objective for Fareham. The AQMA 
extensions were agreed in October 2017.



Drainage
A3.34 The area includes a number of drainage ditches which are part of the River 

Alver catchment. The development allocation proposes to retain and 
enhance these drainage ditches as part of a Sustainable Drainage System 
(SuDS). It will be important to understand the impact of any development 
on potential for surface water flooding in the vicinity and the water quality 
of the River Alver.

Natural environment 
A3.35 The proposal aims to retain existing field and tree boundaries and to 

incorporate street trees and verges to reflect the character of Bridgemary. 



Appendix 4: Indicative format for a bilateral Statement of Common Ground 
between Fareham Borough Council and Gosport Borough Council

Statement of Common Ground

??  2020

Prepared and agreed by Fareham Borough Council 
and Gosport Borough Council

Forming part of the Duty to Cooperate and evidence base for 
both Council’s emerging Local Plan

Version 1.0

Insert relevant logos



Contents
1 Introduction .........................................................................................................................  

What is a Statement of Common Ground? ............................................................................ 
What does this document include? ........................................................................................ 
What parties are involved with this Statement of Common Ground?..................................... 
What are the Governance arrangements? ............................................................................. 
Relationship with the Partnership for South Hampshire......................................................... 

2 Strategic Geography...........................................................................................................  
3 Strategic Matters.................................................................................................................  

1: Local Housing Need and Unmet Need............................................................................... 
Strategic matter 1: Unmet need ............................................................................................. 
2: Strategic Gap and proposed allocations within the existing boundaries ............................ 
Strategic matter 2a: Proposed HA2 allocation within existing Strategic Gap ......................... 
Strategic matter 2b: The identification of the Strategic Growth Area in the Strategic Gap..... 
3: Affordable Housing.............................................................................................................  
Strategic matter 3: Affordable housing to serve the housing sub market............................... 
4: Employment .......................................................................................................................  
Strategic matter 4a: Overall Employment provision in both Boroughs ................................... 
Strategic matter 4b: Employment provision at Daedalus ....................................................... 
5   Retail, leisure and other commercial development ........................................................... 
6: Transport and accessibility................................................................................................. 
7: Telecommunications ..........................................................................................................  
8: Security ..............................................................................................................................  
9: Waste management ...........................................................................................................  
10: Water supply ....................................................................................................................  
11: Waste Water.....................................................................................................................  
Strategic matter 11 : Nitrates mitigation required to facilitate development ........................... 
12: Flood risk and coastal change management....................................................................

    13: Provision of minerals
    14: Energy (including heat)

 15: Community facilities- health, education and cultural infrastructure
 16: Historic Environment
 17: Design
 18: Landscapes
 19: Biodiversity- Local ecological network
 20: Green infrastructure
21: Climate change mitigation and adaptation
22: Air pollution

4  Conclusion and signatories ………………………………………………………………………



1 Introduction

What is a Statement of Common Ground?

1.1 In accordance with Government’s latest version of the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF), local planning authorities should produce, maintain and keep up 
to date a Statement of Common Ground (SCG) to highlight agreements and any 
outstanding disagreements on cross boundary strategic issues with neighbouring 
authorities and other relevant bodies.

1.2 This forms part of each local planning authority’s evidence for their respective 
emerging Local Plans and in particular, its requirement under 2011 Localism Act 
regarding the Duty to Cooperate.

1.3 This SCG has been prepared in accordance with Paragraph 27 of the NPPF3 and the 
section of the Planning Practice Guidance on Maintaining Effective Cooperation4.  It 
has also followed guidance prepared by the Planning Advisory Service (PAS) on this 
matter.

What does this document include?

1.4 The rest of Section 1 includes the legal requirements and practicalities relating to the 
SCG and its relationship with ongoing work relating to the multilateral SCG being 
prepared by the Partnership for South Hampshire (PfSH) which also includes both 
Fareham and Gosport Council’s.

1.5 Section 2 outlines the strategic geography of the two Boroughs including a plan and a 
brief description of the area.

1.6 Section 3 firstly sets out all the strategic matters which, in accordance with the NPPF, 
needs to be considered by a SCG.  It then sets out where agreements have been 
reached on issues.  The rest of the section then highlights those issues where 
agreement has yet to be reached and where evidence is awaiting or where further work 
is required.

1.7 Finally section 4 sets out the next steps which need to be undertaken with the relevant 
signatories from each authority.

What parties are involved with this Statement of Common Ground?

1.8 This document is a bilateral SCG between Fareham Borough Council and Gosport 
Borough Council relating to their respective Local Plans which cover the period to 
2036.

What are the Governance arrangements?

1.9 To be determined- it is anticipated that the documents will be signed off by the 
relevant portfolio holders.  In GBC’s case this would be the Chair of the Economic 
Development Board.

1.10 The document will be updated as each respective Local Plan reaches the next stage 
of preparation. Table 1.1 below sets out the current timetable for each Local Plan. 

3 Add link
4 Add link



There are often amendments to these timetables as national guidance and local 
circumstances changes for a wide variety of reasons.  The SCG will be updated to 
reflect such changes.

Table 1.1 Local Plan timetables as at January 2020

Relationship with the Partnership for South Hampshire

1.11 Both Fareham and Gosport Borough Councils are members of the Partnership for 
South Hampshire (PfSH) (formerly known as the Partnership for Urban South 
Hampshire (PUSH)) This Partnership is made up of  11 local authorities5 and works 
together to address sub-regional strategic issues including those relating to land use 
planning. The Partnership also has a close working relationship with the Environmental 
Agency, Natural England, the Solent Local Enterprise Partnership and Solent 
Transport.

1.12 PfSH has produced a number of sub regional planning documents including the South 
Hampshire Strategy (October 2012) which was critical for both Councils’ demonstrating 
their duty to cooperate on strategic issues with neighbouring authorities including 
bilaterally between each other.  The importance of this close working arrangement is 

5 East Hampshire District Council, Eastleigh Borough Council, Fareham Borough Council, Gosport Borough Council, 
Hampshire County Council, Havant Borough Council, New Forest District Council, Portsmouth City Council, Southampton City 
Council, Test Valley District Council and Winchester City Council.

Local Plan Stage Fareham Borough Council Gosport Borough Council

Part 1: Core 
Strategy

August 2011

Part 2: June 2015

Adoption of current 
Local Plan

Part 3: June 2015

Gosport 
Borough Local 
Plan 2011-2029

October 2015

Local Plans in preparation

Draft Fareham 
Local Plan 2036

November 
2017

Issues and 
Options

June 2019

Regulation 18

Supplement January 2020

Gosport 
Borough Local 
Plan 2036: 
Consultation 
Draft

September 
2020- 
provisional tbc

Regulation 19 Publication 
Plan 

Spring 2020 Publication 
Version

tbc

Regulation 22 Submission of 
Plan to 
Secretary of 
State

Summer 
2020

Submission of 
Plan to 
Secretary of 
State

tbc

Regulation 23-25 Public 
Examination

Autumn 
Winter 2020

Public 
Examination

tbc

Regulation 26 Adoption Summer 
2021

Adoption tbc



evidenced in each authorities previous Duty to Cooperate statements6 which assisted 
the relevant plans to be found ‘sound’ by the respective Planning Inspectors.

1.13 Since the adoption of both authority’s Local Plans, PFSH has produced its Spatial 
Position Statement7 (2016) which has assisted other authorities with more recent 
Examinations in Public.  This document addressed several issues including strategic 
gaps and matters relating to objectively assessed housing needs across the sub region 
and covered the period to 2034.

1.14 However for a number of reasons including the requirements in the latest NPPF such 
as the new standardised methodology for calculating objectively assessed housing 
need (OAHN) it has been necessary to produce a new spatial planning document 
which will also encompass a Statement of Common Ground on a sub-regional multi-
lateral basis.

1.15 Significant evidence is currently being prepared to inform the PfSH SCG and this will 
also inform the evidence base of both the forthcoming Fareham and Gosport Local 
Plans and indeed elements of the bilateral SCG.  This document will set out how each 
issue relates to both the bilateral and multilateral SCG.

1.16 In this round of plan-making it has been considered necessary for a bilateral SCG 
which is justified as there are particular cross-boundary issues which need to be 
considered in more detail for reasons explained in section 2 and 3 below.

2 Strategic Geography

Insert Plan and text

6 GBC: https://www.gosport.gov.uk/media/1248/LP-A4-5-Duty-to-Cooperate-Statement-November-
2014/pdf/LP_A4_5_Duty_to_Co-Operate_Statement_November_2014.pdf?m=636972518802200000 
FBC Add link
7 https://www.push.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/05/PUSH-Spatial-Position-Statement-2016.pdf  

https://www.gosport.gov.uk/media/1248/LP-A4-5-Duty-to-Cooperate-Statement-November-2014/pdf/LP_A4_5_Duty_to_Co-Operate_Statement_November_2014.pdf?m=636972518802200000
https://www.gosport.gov.uk/media/1248/LP-A4-5-Duty-to-Cooperate-Statement-November-2014/pdf/LP_A4_5_Duty_to_Co-Operate_Statement_November_2014.pdf?m=636972518802200000
https://www.push.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/05/PUSH-Spatial-Position-Statement-2016.pdf


37

3 Strategic Matters

3.1 This section identifies the strategic matters that are required to be included in a 
SCG as set out in the NPPF, if either party considers them to be relevant cross-
boundary strategic matters.  Table 3.1 aims to identify:  

 those matters of primary and fundamental importance; 

 those where there are less fundamental cross-boundary issues and/or require 
further exploration; and 

 those issues where there are no outstanding issues of significance or not 
sufficiently strategic or relevant to this bilateral SCG.  

Table 3.1: Strategic Matter: Scoping of Matters that require further 
consideration in the bilateral Statement of Common Ground

Key:
Primary/Fundamental 
bilateral issue 
outstanding

Secondary 
bilateral issue

No outstanding 
bilateral issue

Matter to be considered by

Strategic Matter
PfSH ScG FBC/GBC 

Bilateral 
SCG

Consideration 
for each 
Local Plan

Comment on whether needs to 
be considered further by 
bilateral SCG

1: Housing Numbers 
and Unmet Need

   
if there is unmet 

need


 if there is unmet 

need 

Matter needs to be considered 
further to address the issue of 
unmet need and how this can be 
accommodated on a sub-regional 
(or beyond) basis.

2: Strategic gaps and 
proposed allocations 
within the existing 
boundaries

   GBC has objected to FBC’s 
proposal to amend the Strategic 
Gap and include a significant 
housing allocation (HA2).
GBC also objects to the potential 
for a Strategic Growth Area in the 
Strategic Gap
The PfSH SCG will be of 
relevance as work is underway to 
find appropriate sites for 
development across the sub 
region.  This could include 
alternative sites to accommodate 
proposed residential development 
at HA2 or potential development 
within the Strategic Growth Area.

3: Affordable 
housing to serve 
the sub housing 
market

  This is largely considered to be 
determined by each local planning 
authority including the 
consideration of their own 
evidence regarding whole-plan 
viability, although there may need 
to be   further consideration in 



38

Strategic Matter

Matter to be considered by Comment on whether needs to 
be considered further by 
bilateral SCG

PfSH ScG FBC/GBC 
Bilateral 
SCG

Consideration 
for each 
Local Plan

terms of the impact it could have 
on the sub market housing area.

4: Employment


 

Daedalus site
 



Both Boroughs are in the same 
travel to work area and 
consequently employment 
provision and their accessibility is 
an important cross-boundary 
issue.

The Daedalus site straddles the 
boundary and consequently is of 
particular relevance to both 
authorities.

5: Retail, leisure 
and other 
commercial 
development


 

Daedalus site
 



PfSH sets out a retail hierarchy. 
There are a number of out-of-
centre retail parks (Segensworth) 
and shopping centres/leisure 
complexes (Whiteley) which are 
applicable for residents in both 
areas.  Proposals for centres and 
out of centre locations will 
therefore be potentially relevant in 
a SCG.

The Daedalus site straddles the 
boundary and consequently is of 
particular relevance to both 
authorities for leisure and other 
commercial development.

At this stage GBC has no 
particular issues with FBC’s DFLP 
retail and leisure proposals.

6: Transport and 
accessibility

  
     


 



Need to ensure effective transport 
corridors are maintained to and 
from the Gosport Peninsula and 
that recent and proposed new 
road infrastructure to improve 
access to the Peninsula have 
been implemented to address 
existing deficiencies not facilitate 
new development which will 
negate the benefits of the new 
road infrastructure.

Cross boundary public transport 
and cycling are potential areas of 
agreement and further 
cooperation. 

7: 
Telecommunicatio
ns

 It is recognised that 5G 
Broadband and Full fibre is of 
critical importance for economic 
prosperity of both Boroughs.  It is 
considered that each Local Plans’ 
infrastructure/telecommunication 



39

Strategic Matter

Matter to be considered by Comment on whether needs to 
be considered further by 
bilateral SCG

PfSH ScG FBC/GBC 
Bilateral 
SCG

Consideration 
for each 
Local Plan

policies can address any relevant 
matters and that there are no 
particular cross-boundary issues 
to be addressed by a SCG.

8: Security    Security matters can be 
addressed by policies in each 
Local Plan and that there are no 
particular cross-boundary issues 
to be addressed by a SCG.

9: Waste 
Management

 
,

Hampshire County Council is the 
Waste Authority for both 
Boroughs and is responsible for 
the Hampshire Minerals and 
Waste Local Plan which forms 
part of the statutory Development 
Plan for both areas.  
Consequently each local authority 
will need to cooperate with HCC 
on the production of a future 
Minerals and Waste Local Plan as 
well as any linked policies in their 
respective plans.  This may 
require a separate SCG at some 
point in the future but it is not 
considered necessary to be 
included in this bilateral SCG.

10: Water supply       The PfSH partners commissioned 
the Integrated Water 
Management Strategy which 
provides evidence on the 
availability of water supply 
associated with new 
development.  This will form part 
of the evidence base for each 
Local Plan.  With regard to the 
findings of this study there are not 
considered any particular cross-
boundary strategic issues for this 
bilateral SCG and that each 
respective plan can cover any 
specific issue.

11: Waste water          The PfSH partners commissioned 
the Integrated Water 
Management Strategy which 
provides evidence on waste water 
infrastructure across South 
Hampshire and any associated 
issues relating to the 
environment.  As a result of this 
study and further supplemental 
work it is considered that there 
are issues at a sub-regional, 
cross-boundary and Borough-
wide level that need to be 
addressed, particularly in relation 



40

Strategic Matter

Matter to be considered by Comment on whether needs to 
be considered further by 
bilateral SCG

PfSH ScG FBC/GBC 
Bilateral 
SCG

Consideration 
for each 
Local Plan

to achieving nutrient neutrality for 
individual developments.  This 
matter is therefore considered 
further in this SCG.

12: Flood risk and 
coastal change 
management

         PfSH has commissioned new 
sub-regional flood mapping in 
order that authorities can 
undertake a Strategic Flood Risk 
Assessment (SFRA) for their 
respective Local Plans. There 
may be linked flood risk issues for 
both authorities to consider and 
therefore it is necessary to include 
in the bilateral SCG.

13: Provision of 
minerals

   Hampshire County Council is the 
Mineral Authority for both 
Boroughs and is responsible for 
the Hampshire Minerals and 
Waste Local Plan which forms 
part of the statutory Development 
Plan for both areas.  
Consequently each local authority 
will need to cooperate with HCC 
on the production of a future 
Minerals and Waste Local Plan as 
well as any linked policies in their 
respective plans.  This may 
require a separate SCG at some 
point in the future but it is not 
considered necessary to be 
included in this bilateral SCG.

14: Energy 
(including heat)

       ?    It is now law that the UK will 
produce net zero carbon 
emissions by 2050. Consequently 
specific policies in the respective 
local plans will consider this issue 
in further detail.  There may be 
possibilities to explore cross 
boundary renewable energy 
opportunities in the strategic gap. 

15: Community 
facilities- health, 
education and 
cultural 
infrastructure

  
Proposed HA2 

allocation

   This is primarily an issue for each 
respective Local Plan.  However 
because of the proximity of the 
HA2 residential allocation to 
communities this issue needs to 
be investigated further. This will 
require relevant discussions with 
the relevant infrastructure 
providers.  This is not considered 
a fundamental issue unlike the 
principle of the allocation as there 
may appropriate mitigation 
measures that can be put in 
place, however the issue needs to 
be considered fully.



41

Strategic Matter

Matter to be considered by Comment on whether needs to 
be considered further by 
bilateral SCG

PfSH ScG FBC/GBC 
Bilateral 
SCG

Consideration 
for each 
Local Plan

16: Historic 
Environment

  
Daedalus site

   There are not generally 
considered any particular cross-
boundary historic environment 
issues and this is primarily for 
each local plan to consider.  
However there are potential 
benefits of cooperating in relation 
to the historic environment with 
regard to the Daedalus site.  

17: Design   ?
Proposed HA2 

allocation

   Primarily an issue for each 
respective Local Plan to address 
however there may be design 
issues that need further 
consideration with regard to the 
proposed HA2 allocation.  It may 
be that this scoped out fairly 
quickly.

18: Landscapes       Evidence suggests that the open 
landscape of the Fareham, 
Gosport, Lee-on-the-Solent, 
Stubbington Strategic Gap should 
remain open.

19: Biodiversity- 
Local ecological 
network

         This includes internationally and 
nationally important and 
consequently it is necessary to 
consider this issue on a sub-
regional, bilateral and Borough-
wide basis.

20: Green 
infrastructure

         This is particularly relevant to the 
Strategic Gap and links to it and 
therefore necessary to consider 
further.

21: Climate 
change mitigation 
and adaptation

         This is particularly relevant to the 
Strategic Gap and links to it and 
therefore necessary to consider 
further.

22: Air pollution

         There are two Air Quality 
Management Areas in Fareham. It 
is important that development on 
the Peninsula including the 
Strategic Gap does not 
exacerbate this problem and 
therefore the matter needs to be 
considered as part of the SCG.

3.2 The following subsections considers those strategic matters coloured 
red and amber in further detail. Whilst most of the green themes have 
been scoped out and no further detail is included, in certain cases some 
further information is provided, for example with regard to retail and 
leisure uses, as this often seen as a particular cross-boundary issue 
although in Gosport and Fareham as things currently stand there is not 
considered a particular issue and consequently the relevant evidence is 
set out to demonstrate how this was scoped out.



42

Strategic Matters
1: Local Housing Need and Unmet Need

Introduction to issue

3.3   Local Housing Need (LHN) for Local Plan is now normally determined 
by the Government’s standardised methodology as set out in the NPPF 
and accompanying guidance. These figures will change during the plan 
preparation process due to various elements of the methodology. Tables  
3.1a and 3.1b below set out the current adopted Local Plan position and 
the latest figures in accordance with the standardised methodology as at  
1st February 2020 for each authority respectively.

Table 3.1a  Fareham Borough- Local Housing Need

Table 1: Local Plan Housing requirement
Fareham annual housing need 
(based on current data)

520

Plan period 2020-2036 16 years
Total Fareham need 8,320
Plus Buffer of 10-15% 832-1,248
Plus unmet need To be confirmed
Total Local plan Housing 
requirement 

To be confirmed

Table 3.1b  Gosport Borough- Local Housing Need
No. of dwellings 
per annum

Total provision 
in plan period

Comment

Adopted Gosport 
Borough Local 
Plan 2011-2029

170 3,060 (2011-
2029)

Found sound by 
Planning 
Inspector

Initial position 
based when 
standardised 
methodology first 
released in July 
2018

238 (capped)

343 (uncapped)

4,760 
(assuming a 
Plan period of 
2016-2036

5,145 
(assuming a 
Plan period of 
2021-2036

GBC initially 
allowed to use a 
40% cap over 
the current 
adopted Local 
Plan 
requirement as 
the Plan was 
adopted less 
than 5 years 
ago. However by 
the time of 
adoption this will 
be beyond the 
five year period.



43

Key evidence studies

Strategic matter 1: Unmet need

Fareham Borough Council’s position: To be inserted

Gosport Borough Council position: To be inserted- based on GBC’s 
responses to the three Reg 18 consultations

Relation with PfSH work on the multilateral SCG: To be inserted

Agreed position: To be inserted

Matters to be resolved: To be inserted

2: Strategic Gap and proposed allocations within the existing 
boundaries

Introduction to issue

To be inserted

Insert plan of current and proposed Strategic Gap

Key evidence studies
Strategic matter 2a: Proposed HA2 allocation within existing 
Strategic Gap

Fareham Borough Council’s position: To be inserted

Gosport Borough Council position: To be inserted- based on GBC’s 
responses to the three Reg 18 consultations

Relation with PfSH work on the multilateral SCG: To be inserted

Agreed position: To be inserted

Matters to be resolved: To be inserted

Strategic matter 2b: The identification of the Strategic Growth 
Area in the Strategic Gap

Fareham Borough Council’s position: To be inserted

Gosport Borough Council position: To be inserted- based on GBC’s 
responses to the three Reg 18 consultations



44

Relation with PfSH work on the multilateral SCG: To be inserted

Agreed position: To be inserted

Matters to be resolved: To be inserted

3: Affordable Housing

Introduction to issue
The affordability of housing is one of the key issues facing the Country.  
As identified in Section 1 the latest affordability ratios for both median 
and lowest quartile are significant with housing more unaffordable in 
Fareham compared to earnings. Both Borough represent a sub housing 
market and therefore in many instances, depending on the housing type 
residents will move across the area to access suitable housing.

Key evidence studies

Strategic matter 3: Affordable housing to serve the housing sub 
market

Fareham Borough Council’s position: To be inserted

Gosport Borough Council position: To be inserted- based on GBC’s 
responses to the three Reg 18 consultations

Relation with PfSH work on the multilateral SCG: To be inserted

Agreed position: To be inserted

Matters to be resolved: To be inserted

4: Employment

Introduction to issue
As outlined in Section 2 there are a number of particular employment 
issues relating to Gosport not least the absolute fall in jobs in the 
Borough over recent decades and the lowest job density figures in the 
South East of England

Daedalus is major regeneration site within both Boroughs and 
consequently is considered below as a strategic matter (4b)

Key evidence studies



45

Strategic matter 4a: Overall Employment provision in both 
Boroughs

Fareham Borough Council’s position: To be inserted

Gosport Borough Council position: To be inserted- based on GBC’s 
responses to the three Reg 18 consultations

Relation with PfSH work on the multilateral SCG: To be inserted

Agreed position: To be inserted

Matters to be resolved: To be inserted

Strategic matter 4b: Employment provision at Daedalus

Fareham Borough Council’s position: To be inserted

Gosport Borough Council position: To be inserted- based on GBC’s 
responses to the three Reg 18 consultations

Relation with PfSH work on the multilateral SCG: To be inserted

Agreed position: To be inserted

Matters to be resolved: To be inserted

5   Retail, leisure and other commercial development:

ABOVE FORMAT REPEATED

6: Transport and accessibility

ABOVE FORMAT REPEATED

7: Telecommunications

3.?? This strategic matter has been scoped out of the bilateral SCG for 
reasons set out in Table 3.1.

8: Security

3.?? This strategic matter has been scoped out of the bilateral SCG for 
reasons set out in Table 3.1.

9: Waste management

3.?? This strategic matter has been scoped out of the bilateral SCG for 
reasons set out in Table 3.1.



46

10: Water supply

3.?? This strategic matter has been scoped out of the bilateral SCG for 
reasons set out in Table 3.1.
11: Waste Water- FORMAT USED FOR STRATEGIC MATTERS 1-6

12: Flood risk and coastal change management –FORMAT USED FOR 
STRATEGIC MATTERS 1-6

13: Provision of minerals
3.?? This strategic matter has been scoped out of the bilateral SCG for 

reasons set out in Table 3.1.

14: Energy (including heat)- FORMAT USED FOR STRATEGIC MATTERS 1-6

15: Community facilities- health, education and cultural 
infrastructure  - FORMAT USED FOR STRATEGIC MATTERS 1-6

16: Historic Environment- FORMAT USED FOR STRATEGIC MATTERS 1-6

17: Design- FORMAT USED FOR STRATEGIC MATTERS 1-6

18: Landscapes- FORMAT USED FOR STRATEGIC MATTERS 1-6

19: Biodiversity- Local ecological network- FORMAT USED FOR 
STRATEGIC MATTERS 1-6

20: Green infrastructure- FORMAT USED FOR STRATEGIC MATTERS 1-6

21: Climate change mitigation and adaptation- FORMAT USED FOR 
STRATEGIC MATTERS 1-6

22: Air pollution- FORMAT USED FOR STRATEGIC MATTERS 1-6

4 Conclusion

Concluding remarks- and areas where further work if possible is appropriate.
Signatories.



7/1

Board/Committee: Regulatory Board

Date of Meeting: 26th February 2020

Title: Consultation from Fareham Borough Council

P/19/1260/OA - cross boundary outline application, with all 
matters reserved except for access, for the construction of up to 
99 residential dwellings, landscaping, open space and 
associated works, with access from Brookers Lane (Gosport 
Borough Council to only determine part of the application 
relating to part access in Gosport Borough)

Land East of Newgate Lane East, Fareham

Author: Development Manager & Planning Policy Manager

Status: For Decision

Purpose

An Outline planning application has been submitted to Fareham Borough Council (FBC) and 
to Gosport Borough Council (GBC) by Bargate Homes Ltd for a development of up to 99 
dwellings.

As neighbouring authority GBC has been consulted on the elements of proposals within 
Fareham by FBC. It should be noted that the elements of the planning application that relates 
to land in Gosport Borough (reference 19/00516/OUT) remain under consideration and will 
be referred to a future meeting of the Regulatory Board for determination.

Recommendation

Raise objection in the strongest possible terms on the following grounds for the reasons set 
out in paragraphs 2.4 to 2.36 of this report:

1. The proposed development is contrary to Fareham Borough Council’s adopted Local Plan 
(Parts 1 and 2) for a number of reasons including that the development is outside the 
settlement boundary and is located within the Strategic Gap.

2. That no weight should be given to the Regulation 18 versions of the Draft Fareham Local 
Plan 2036 (DFLP) given the strength of objection to the proposed allocation HA2, of which 
this application site forms the southern section. Consequently the issues arising from the 
outstanding objections to HA2 need to be considered as part of the forthcoming 
Examination in Public into the DFLP and in combination with other proposals within the 
existing Strategic Gap.

1 Background

1.1 In October 2018 GBC responded to a consultation from FBC relating to an Outline 
application for the demolition of existing buildings and development of up to 75 
dwellings, open space, vehicular access point from Newgate Lane and associated 

Agenda Item 7



7/2

and ancillary infrastructure, with all matters except access to be reserved on land at 
Newgate Lane (North)  Fareham  Hampshire.

1.2 In June 2019 GBC responded to a consultation from FBC relating to an Outline 
application for the demolition of existing buildings and development of up to 115 
dwellings, open space, vehicular access point from Newgate Lane and associated 
and ancillary infrastructure, with all matters except access to be reserved on land at 
Newgate Lane (South)  Fareham  Hampshire.

1.3 The Council’s responses raised objections “in the strongest possible terms” on the 
grounds set out in the recommendation above.

2 Report

2.1 The site of the application to which the current consultation relates is located on the 
opposite (eastern) side of Newgate Lane East opposite the sites of the previous 
consultation where an objection was made.

2.2 The irregularly shaped site, which extends to approximately 4 hectares, is located to 
the north of Brookers Field and the cycle/footway between Brookers and Woodcote 
Lanes. The site is bounded to the west by the recently built section known as 
Newgate Lane East and to the east by the Borough boundary beyond which are the 
rear gardens of properties in Heron Way.

2.3 The application is in Outline with only access to be determined. The plans submitted 
with the application show vehicular access to the site being from Brookers Lane and 
an indicative pedestrian links to Heron Way and Brookers Field. The submitted plans 
also show potential pedestrian links to future development on fields to the north of 
the site.

2.4 The site comprises agricultural land and is located outside defined settlements within 
Fareham Borough and within the ‘Strategic Gap’ as identified in the Fareham Local 
Plan.

2.5 Policy CS14: Development Outside of Settlements of the adopted Fareham Local 
Plan (Part 1 Core Strategy) clearly states that built development on land outside 
the defined settlement will be strictly controlled to protect the countryside from 
development which would affect its landscape character, appearance and function. 
It is clear that this proposal will affect the landscape character, appearance and 
function of this area outside the existing defined settlement and is therefore 
contrary to Policy CS14.

2.6 In terms of landscape and character Fareham Borough Council’s own latest 
evidence, Fareham Landscape Assessment (2017)  regarding the ‘Woodcot area’ 
which includes the land covered by the proposed Newgate Lane allocation, states,

‘This is a cohesive area of undeveloped landscape which performs an important role 
in respect of the primary purposes of the Strategic Gap i.e. in defining the edges, 
separate identity and settings of Fareham and Gosport, preventing their 
coalescence. Even minor encroachment beyond existing settlement boundaries 
could have an adverse effect on these functions and the overall integrity of the 



7/3

landscape and Strategic Gap. It is recommended that the Gap boundaries remain 
unchanged.’  

2.7 Policy DSP6: New Residential Development Outside of the Defined Urban 
Settlement Boundary of Part 2 of the Local Plan also presumes against new 
residential development outside of the defined urban boundary.  The only 
exceptions relate to very small scale levels of development of one or two dwellings 
as infill. This planning application is of a significant scale (99 dwellings) and 
therefore is contrary to Policy DSP6.

2.8 Policy DSP40 relates to housing allocations, of which this site is not included, 
recognises that in certain circumstances where it can be demonstrated that the 
Council does not have a five year supply of housing, additional sites outside of the 
urban area boundary may be permitted where they meet all of the criteria set out. 
Consequently whilst acknowledging that Fareham Borough may not currently have 
a five year land supply it is clear that this particular proposal does not meet all the 
criteria set out in Policy DSP40.

2.9 Firstly with regard to criterion ii) it states that the proposal should be sustainably 
located adjacent to, and well related to, the existing urban settlement boundaries 
and can be well integrated with the neighbouring settlement.  This proposal is not 
adjacent or well related to any development within the Fareham Local Plan.  It is 
detached from any other settlements within Fareham Borough.

2.10 Whilst recognising it is attached to Gosport Borough’s urban area boundary it is 
not explicitly stated that this policy relates to settlements outside of Fareham 
Borough’s jurisdiction and therefore it can only be taken to refer to settlements 
covered by the Fareham Local Plan and within its jurisdiction.

2.11 Whilst this may appear to be a matter of technical definition it is clear that if this 
was the intention of the Policy it should have been stated within the text and as 
part of the duty to cooperate discussions. 

2.12 Consequently it is reasonable to conclude that the settlement boundaries referred 
to in Policy DSP40 relate to those within Fareham Borough only and consequently 
given that this proposal is not adjacent these settlements it is therefore contrary to 
criterion ii)

2.13 Criterion iii) requires that proposals are sensitively designed to reflect the character 
of neighbouring settlement and to minimise the impact on Strategic Gaps.  It is 
clear that this proposed development would impact on the long standing objectives 
of the strategic gap between Fareham, Gosport, Lee-on-the-Solent and 
Stubbington and significantly diminish its function as previously mentioned with 
regard to Policy CS14 and further highlighted below with regard to the Strategic 
Gap policy (CS22).

2.14 Criterion v) requires that the site would not have any unacceptable environmental, 
amenity and traffic implications. 

2.15 There is significant concern that this planning proposal must be seen in the context 
of the larger proposed HA2 allocation, the number of existing speculative 



7/4

applications within the Strategic Gap and the potential Strategic Growth Area as 
outlined in the Supplement version of the latest Regulation 18 consultation.

2.16 As this site together with all the other sites have not been subject to an in-
combination assessment it is impossible to fully understand the environmental, 
amenity and traffic implications regarding this proposal.  It is also important to 
stress that evidence that does exist has not been examined in public by a Local 
Plan Inspector in order to ascertain the environmental, amenity and traffic 
implications regarding this proposal and other related proposals in the existing 
Strategic Gap. This is imperative given the particular issues associated with the 
Gosport Peninsula including limited transport choices, significant out commuting 
and congestion, and air pollution issues.

2.17 This proposal should not be brought forward in isolation in advance of an in-
combination assessment of the other sites in the strategic gap and the wider 
peninsula to ascertain impacts on traffic, air quality and other environmental 
considerations. Consequently it needs to be considered as part of a Local Plan 
Examination in Public.

2.18 There is also significant concern that this application site will be linked via a vehicular 
access to the northern part of the allocation site with direct access onto Newgate 
Lane East. This would negate the benefits of the proposed Newgate Lane 
improvements which have been implemented to address existing accessibility issues 
to, and from, the Gosport Peninsula rather than facilitate new development.

2.19 Whilst recognising that the plans do not currently show a link to the northern part 
of this allocation, as there is no adopted policy in place these arrangements could 
easily be altered. Such amendments would be completely outside the control of 
Gosport Borough Council despite the fact that the Gosport community would be 
most affected by a detrimental impact on the effectiveness of Newgate Lane.  
Consequently as there is no adopted policy position in place this makes these 
concerns a material consideration to this particular planning application. 

2.20 In the light of the point raised above the proposal is therefore contrary to criteria 
ii), iii) and v) of Policy DSP40: Housing Allocation.

2.21 Policy DSP7 relates to affordable housing exception sites.  This proposal includes 
100% affordable housing and criterion ii) states that such development outside 
settlement boundaries should be of a small scale.  99 dwellings is not considered 
small scale.  The policy also refers to being well related to existing urban settlement 
boundaries (criterion ii) and minimising adverse impact on the countryside and if 
relevant, strategic gaps (criterion iii).  As stated above this is not considered the case 
in this instance. The proposal is therefore contrary to criteria ii) and iii) of Policy 
DSP7.

2.22 This proposal is within the existing strategic gap as defined by the Fareham Local 
Plan. The Strategic Gap separates the settlements of Fareham, Gosport, 
Stubbington and Lee-on-the-Solent and the planning application is therefore 
contrary to the Fareham Core Strategy. 



7/5

Policy CS22, “Development in Strategic Gaps” states that, ‘development proposals 
will not be permitted either individually or cumulatively where it significantly affects 
the integrity of the gap and the physical and visual separation of the settlements’. 

2.23 The Policy recognises that maintaining separation will prevent coalescence of the 
settlements in this densely settled part of South Hampshire. The justification text 
states that gaps between settlements help define and maintain the separate identity 
of individual settlements and have strong local support. It adds that Strategic Gaps 
do not necessarily have intrinsic landscape value but are important in maintaining 
the settlement pattern, keeping individual settlements separate and providing 
opportunities for green infrastructure/green corridors. It acknowledges that 
continuing pressure for high levels of development mean that maintaining gaps 
continues to be justified.

2.24 The current boundary has been supported by a Planning Inspector as recently as 
May 2015.  In his report into the Examination in Public for the Fareham Local Plan 
Part 2, the Inspector refers to FBC’s evidence regarding the review of Strategic Gaps 
and states,  

‘although the review did not specifically take into account the route of the Stubbington 
by-pass and the Newgate Lane improvements, there is no reason to conclude that 
these proposals would justify altering the boundary of the gap in those locations. 
Having visited the area I agree with the Council that the gap between Fareham and 
Stubbington is justified in order to retain visual separation and that the proposed road 
improvements would not justify a revision to the boundary. The Council’s approach 
is sound.’ 

2.25 This proposal by its sheer scale and location will undoubtedly harm the integrity of 
the gap and will diminish the physical and visual separation of the settlements.  It 
is clearly contrary to Policy CS22

2.26 In addition, this Strategic Gap is an important component of green infrastructure 
which serves existing communities and those developments that are already planned 
in development plans. The proposed development would diminish the opportunities 
to make the optimum use of this green infrastructure particularly in providing green 
linkages from Fareham to the coast via the Alver Valley Country Park.

2.27 As highlighted previously, the proposal also has the significant potential to negate 
the benefits being provided by the highway improvements at Newgate Lane East by 
adding additional traffic onto Newgate Lane. This would have an associated negative 
impact on traffic flows, increasing congestion to the detriment of Gosport residents 
and the local economy including accessibility to the Solent Enterprise Zone at 
Daedalus.

2.28 The proposal would be very car dependent with little provision for public transport. 
This would exacerbate the amount of trips using Newgate Lane. Any additional traffic 
on Newgate Lane is likely to also have an impact on the Air Quality Management 
Area (AQMA) at the north end of Newgate Lane and Gosport Road and this may be 
difficult to mitigate given the scale of the allocation and limited public transport 
choice.



7/6

2.29 It is important to emphasise that this proposal alone, and in combination with other 
housing proposals in the strategic gap, will significantly undermine the ability of the 
transport routes to function effectively including the recently improved Newgate Lane 
and the approved Stubbington Bypass. Specific consideration needs to be given to 
the acute transport and wider economic regeneration issues facing Gosport Borough 
and the need to understand the impact this development would have on the 
economic performance of the Borough.

2.30 The Gosport Peninsula has no mainland rail services and limited choices of road 
routes to and from the Peninsula. It has the lowest job density in the South East 
which results in high levels of out-commuting placing tremendous pressure on the 
road system. This in turn affects the attractiveness of Gosport as a place to invest 
and the ability to retain existing growing businesses.

2.31 Linked to the employment issue there has been a significant rationalisation of MoD 
and other Government sites in the Borough resulting in the release of very complex 
Brownfield sites, with further releases proposed. Many of the sites include nationally 
important heritage assets. These sites offer the potential of a mix of uses including 
housing development. Any remaining limited capacity on the routes to, and from, 
Gosport needs to be available to regenerate the Borough’s Brownfield sites and 
stimulate its economy. New housing developments that are immediately adjacent 
these routes will impede Gosport’s ability to do this and to gain access to the wider 
South Hampshire economy. The development of Greenfield sites in the strategic gap 
significantly undermines the PUSH Principle A which aims to maximise development 
potential within urban areas and minimise Greenfield land take. This proposal is 
therefore considered of strategic significance and indeed has the potential to 
undermine the overall South Hampshire strategy outlined in the PUSH Spatial 
Position Statement.

2.32 The applicant places significant emphasis that this site is identified as an allocation 
in the emerging Draft Fareham Local Plan 2036 (DFLP), in which this site has been 
identified as part of a proposed allocation known as HA2 in FBC’s first and 
subsequent Regulation 18 Consultation documents.

2.33 However this Council considers that no weight should be given to these Regulation 
18 documents in determining the planning application given the early stage in 
preparation and the strength of opposition from organisations such as Gosport 
Borough Council and Hampshire County Council relating to the HA2 allocation.

2.34 It is recognised that the case of prematurity when considering a proposal in advance 
of a Local Plan being adopted is less significant than in the past due to the provisions 
of the Five Year Housing Supply and the Housing Delivery Test.  However it is 
considered that this application should not be permitted in advance of the 
forthcoming Local Plan 2036 as this site together with the remainder of the proposed 
HA2 allocation, other potential development areas in the Strategic Gap and 
speculative developments that have not yet been determined (or could potentially be 
subject to appeal) are of such significance in terms of scale and impact on the entire 
Gosport Peninsula.  Consequently it is not considered that it would represent the 
principles of ‘good growth’, as advocated by Fareham Borough Council, to permit 
this development without understanding the in-combination impacts and that this 
should be addressed as part of the Local Plan process.



7/7

2.35 Therefore all the matters outlined above:  environmental and landscape implications 
traffic congestion, air pollution and other identified issues need to be considered as 
a whole as part of a wider development strategy including as part of ongoing work 
by the Partnership for South Hampshire. The development of so many sites on a 
piecemeal basis has significant implications for transport to, and from, the Peninsula 
resulting in increased congestion with limited transport choices as well as 
implications for air quality including Fareham’s existing Air Quality Management 
Areas.

2.36 The proposal for 99 dwellings should be refused in principle as it is contrary to the 
Fareham Borough adopted Local Plan  and that no weight should be given to the 
proposed allocation in the emerging Draft Fareham Local Plan 2036 given the 
strength of opposition to this allocation including by Gosport Borough Council and 
Hampshire County Council. GBC’s outstanding objection relates to the need to 
protect the effectiveness of the Newgate Lane transport corridor to, and from, the 
Gosport Peninsula and the principle of safeguarding the function of the Strategic Gap 
itself to prevent coalescence and maintain the visual separation between 
settlements. There are also outstanding concerns regarding the impact of traffic on 
the adjoining Gosport residential areas and the capacity of local community facilities 
to accommodate this development.

Financial Services 
comments:

None

Legal Services comments: included within this report
Crime and Disorder: n/a
Equality and Diversity: n/a
Service Improvement Plan 
implications:

n/a

Corporate Plan: n/a
Risk Assessment: n/a
Background papers: Planning application and supporting documents (GBC 

reference 19/00516/OUT)
Appendices/Enclosures:
Appendix A Location Plan

Report author/ Lead Officer: Simon Barnett ext. 5645 / Jayson Grygiel ext 5458



This page is intentionally left blank



Regulatory Board Agenda: 26th February 2020

DC-AGENDA-EN-17.02.20 Page 1 of 12 DC/UNI-form Template

GOSPORT BOROUGH COUNCIL – REGULATORY BOARD 

26th February 2020

ITEMS WITH RECOMMENDATIONS

1. Copies of drawings and accompanying planning applications referred to in this schedule will 
be made available for inspection by Members from 5.00 pm immediately prior to the meeting.  
Unless otherwise advised, these plans will be displayed in the room in which the Regulatory 
Board is to be held.

2. The number of objections and representations indicated in the schedule are correct at the 
time the recommendations were formulated.  Should any representations be made after this 
date, these will be notified to the Regulatory Board during the officer presentation.

3. Copies of all representations received from the public will be made available for inspection by 
Members in the same way as drawings will be made available, referred to in Note 1 above.

4. An index of planning applications within this schedule can be found overleaf, together with a 
summary of each recommendation.

Agenda Item 8



Regulatory Board: 26th February 2020

DC-AGENDA-EN-17.02.20 Page 2 of 12 DC/UNI-form Template

INDEX

Item Page 
No

Appl. No. Address Recommendation

01. 3-8 19/00508/VOC Celtrucks  Aerodrome Road  
Gosport  Hampshire    

Grant Permission
subject to Conditions

02. 9-
12/1

19/00490/FULL 26 Gomer Lane  Gosport  
Hampshire  PO12 2SA    

Refuse



Regulatory Board: 26th February 2020

DC-AGENDA-EN-17.02.20 Page 3 of 12 DC/UNI-form Template

ITEM NUMBER: 01.
APPLICATION NUMBER: 19/00508/VOC
APPLICANT: Mr D. Gaffney  Celtrucks Limited
DATE REGISTERED: 15.11.2019

REMOVAL OF CONDITION 8 (VEHICLE NUMBERS LIMITATION) AND VARIATION OF 
CONDITION 9 (TO ALLOW VEHICLES UP TO 5M IN HEIGHT) OF PLANNING PERMISSION 
14/00348/FULL (as amplified by plan received 31.01.20)
Celtrucks  Aerodrome Road  Gosport  Hampshire    

The Site and the proposal

1. The application site is located on the eastern side of Fareham Road (A32). The land is allocated 
for Employment use under Policy LP16 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan Review. The site is 
generally flat, for the most part hard surfaced, and there is a soft landscape strip along part of the 
northern and western boundaries which comprises a raised, grassed bank, with some planting.  The 
site is used for open storage of commercial vehicles. There are existing portable buildings on the site 
in the northeast corner.  Access to the site is provided via a driveway on the eastern side of the site. 
The driveway is accessed from Aerodrome Road, which itself, is accessed via a traffic light controlled 
junction with Fareham Road (A32).  The site is surrounded by an existing untreated palisade fence. 

2. The land immediately to the south, east and north-east includes single and two-storey buildings, 
primarily in a mix of Class B1, B2 and B8 uses, together with a small proportion of non-Class B 
floorspace. Immediately to the north of the site is the long, linear building of the Gosport RNA Club, 
together with its associated first floor flat. The southern elevation of the building is located 
approximately 5 metres from the northern boundary of the application site. Vehicular access to the 
site is via Aerodrome Road. There is a long driveway which provides access onto Fareham Road to 
the west of the site for exiting vehicles. Due to a difference in levels, the application site is 
approximately 1 metre higher than the RNA Club. To the west of the site, is Fareham Road, which 
includes a row of trees on its eastern side. The residential properties on the western side of Fareham 
Road are located approximately 50 metres from the application site.

3. Planning permission was previously granted (application reference 14/00348/FULL) for the 
continued storage of vehicles on the site, along with a number of other external works and retention 
of modular buildings, and limited the use to CEL Trucks.  There were also a number of conditions 
imposed, including those relating to the number of vehicles stored and the height of vehicles stored. 
This proposal relates to the removal and variation of two conditions attached to that planning 
permission.  The applicant is seeking the removal of condition 8 which limits the number of vehicles 
that can be stored on the site to no more than 50. The applicant advises that they would anticipate 
that between 40 and 60 HGVs would be stored on the site, however, is seeking the flexibility of 
increasing this number where required without breaching the condition. The request to vary the 
condition relates to condition 9 and seeks an increase in the maximum height of vehicles permitted 
to be stored on the site from 4m to 5m to add flexibility to the types of vehicles that can be stored.  
The applicant indicates that this limitation is inflexible and also does not cater for vehicles designed 
for more efficient travel with the addition of aerofoils to cab roofs etc. which add additional height to 
the vehicles, above that permitted.

4. The applicant has provided an additional plan which identifies the areas which would be kept free 
of storage, along with a tracking plan.

Relevant Planning History

13/00491/FULL - Use of land for storage of commercial vehicles (use Class B8 - open storage and 
distribution) with erection of two storey and single storey modular buildings to provide ancillary offices 
(use Class B1) and erection of boundary fencing and 3 no. CCTV cameras - Permitted 07.02.14

14/00348/FULL - Continued use of land for storage of commercial vehicles (and equipment) (use 
Class B8 - open storage and distribution) including retention of two storey and single storey modular 
buildings, retention of existing and installation of new boundary fencing up to 3m high, CCTV security 



Regulatory Board: 26th February 2020

DC-AGENDA-EN-17.02.20 Page 4 of 12 DC/UNI-form Template

cameras, continued siting of vehicle wash facility, welfare unit and storage container with associated 
landscaping and drainage - Permitted 28.10.14

18/00444/FULL - change of use from vehicle storage (Class B8) to vehicle hire (Sui Generis) and 
erection of single storey building - permitted 22.01.19 (planning permission not implemented)

Relevant Policies

Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 – 2029:
LP1  Sustainable Development
LP3  Spatial Strategy
LP10  Design
LP16  Employment Land
LP23  Layout of Sites and Parking
LP46  Pollution Control
LP47  Contamination and Unstable Land

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), February 2019

Consultations
 
 Environmental Health No objection.  I am not aware of the site 

causing any noise disturbance and we have 
no records of such.  The site already appears 
quite full and therefore it seems unlikely there 
is much space to accommodate many more 
vehicles meaning these proposed changes 
are unlikely to lead to any worsening of the 
situation.

 
 Local Highway Authority No objection. It is noted that during the 

planning history of the site, the Highway 
Authority did not request or impose the 
aforementioned conditions. In addition to this, 
all parking related matters fall to Gosport 
Borough Council as the local parking 
authority.

It is agreed that the imposing of a parking limit 
to prevent off-site parking seems 
counterintuitive as allowing more parking 
within the site would reduce the likelihood of 
vehicles having to park on the road. As the 
change of use and site area have not changed 
from the original application, the trip analysis 
considered at the time will be the same.

Response to Public Advertisement

3 letters of objection
Issues raised:-
- planning permission 13/00491/FULL included a condition relating to soft landscaping
- since the permission little has been done to landscape the area that was mandated to be planted to 

form a visually pleasing boundary between the two premises
- members and patrons are faced with a vehicle park from the windows of the members lounge
- with the removal of the height condition some larger vehicles will be even taller than those that are 

currently parked on the boundary on land which is approximately 1m higher already which is an 
imposing an intimidating view when transiting from the car park to the main entrance

- additional vehicle movements will cause increased noise and disturbance
- vehicles are sometimes parked with rear axles hanging over the drop off from the hardstanding



Regulatory Board: 26th February 2020

DC-AGENDA-EN-17.02.20 Page 5 of 12 DC/UNI-form Template

- the boundary should be masked as originally mandated and an exclusion zone where the height 
and weight of vehicles are restricted on the northern boundary

- the palisade fencing should be painted green, or hidden behind a green coloured meshing
- Environmental Health statement incorrect as complaints were made in December 2018 regarding 

emissions, noise and drainage causing contaminated water running off site
- comparison to Travis Perkins is irrelevant as it is on an industrial estate with no adjacent residential 

properties

Principal Issues

1. The site is located within an allocated employment area within the Local Plan, where industrial and 
other employment uses are appropriate.  The principle of large commercial vehicles being parked on 
the site has been established through the granting of the previous permissions, along with any 
associated noise, or other impacts associated with their movements and the use of the site. The 
landscaping in the northwest corner of the site, approved under application 14/00348/FULL, was 
reviewed and replacement planting was undertaken in March 2019. There is no requirement to 
maintain the planting at a minimum height, nor would this be possible.  The approved landscaping 
area extends up to the front of the RNA Club building but not along the side elevations in front of the 
windows and no screening was required along this site boundary, nor was there any requirement for 
the approved fencing to be painted a particular colour. Whilst reference to Travis Perkins has been 
made, which is also opposite residential properties on Fareham Road, this application relates to a 
lawful use of the site and must be considered on its merits. The main issues in this case are, therefore, 
the acceptability of the removal of the limitation regarding the number of vehicles and increasing the 
height limitation and whether removing/altering the conditions would have a detrimental impact on 
the character and visual amenity of the locality, the amenity of neighbouring occupiers, and on 
highway and pedestrian safety.

2. Conditions on the previous permissions restricted the number of vehicles to 50 and also limited the 
height of the vehicles that can be stored, in the interests of visual amenity and highway safety. 
Vehicles can already park up to the boundary with Fareham Road and the northern boundary with 
Gosport RNA Club and the increase in numbers would, therefore, take place more centrally in the 
site. The majority of vehicles on the site are large construction vehicles, lorries and trailers, but there 
are a number of smaller vehicles as well, so a mix of vehicles stored on the site is likely to continue. 
Given any increase in vehicles stored would take place more centrally it is not considered that an 
increase would have an unacceptable visual impact. 

3. Given the existing situation and permitted height of vehicles that can be stored on the site, it is not 
considered that the variation to allow an increase in height of up to 1m would result in a significant 
visual change that would have a harmful impact on the appearance of the area.  Therefore, having 
regard to the existing appearance of the site, the fact that vehicles stored are located adjacent to the 
boundary and the size of the vehicles being stored, as part of its lawful use, the increase in the height 
and number of vehicles would not have a detrimental impact on the visual amenities of the area, in 
accordance with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029.   

4. There is an existing difference in levels with the neighbouring site and vehicles can already lawfully 
park adjacent to the boundaries and opposite the windows within the RNA Club.  Whilst the increase 
in height would enable taller vehicles to park on these boundaries, this additional height is not so 
significant as to have an unacceptable harmful impact on the visitors of the RNA Club, or other 
occupiers.  

5. As noted above, given the vehicles can, and do, park up to the boundaries, any increase in the 
numbers of vehicles stored on site would need to take place more centrally. Activities associated with 
the use are lawful and having regard to how vehicles are stored in the existing layout and given the 
need to maintain access through the site, which would be controlled by condition, the total number of 
vehicles that could be stored is not anticipated to increase significantly, nor would any associated 
activity have a harmful impact on the occupiers of neighbouring properties. The proposals are, 
therefore, in accordance with Policies LP10 and LP46 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 
in this respect.



Regulatory Board: 26th February 2020

DC-AGENDA-EN-17.02.20 Page 6 of 12 DC/UNI-form Template

6. Access to the site is established and will remain unchanged from the previous permission. The 
Local Highway Authority has considered the submitted information and confirmed that it is satisfied 
that the similarity between these proposals and the approved number of vehicles would not cause a 
detrimental impact on highway network.  Notwithstanding the applicant's request to remove condition 
8, it is considered appropriate to impose a further condition requiring the site to be laid out in 
accordance with the parking and turning areas shown on the additional plan. This will limit the number 
of vehicles to the remaining area and ensure that vehicles can turn on the site to enter and leave in 
a forward gear in the interests of highway and pedestrian safety. Subject to the imposition of this 
condition the proposals are, in accordance with Policy LP23 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-
2029.

7. As this proposal relates to a variation of the previous permission those conditions attached to the 
original planning permission 14/00348/FULL that remain relevant need to be re-imposed, but 
amended and updated where appropriate.

Equalities Impact Assessment: No Implications

RECOMMENDATION:  Grant Permission

Subject to the following condition(s):-

 1.  The site shall be operated in accordance with the following approved plans:

8839 01 Rev J; 8339 02 Rev D; 8339 Site Plan 01A

Reason - To ensure that the development is completed satisfactorily in all respects and to comply 
with Policy LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029.

 2.  The use hereby permitted shall be carried on only by Commercial Exports Ltd (CEL Trucks Ltd) 
and shall be for the storage of commercial vehicles only. 
Reason - In the interest of highway and pedestrian safety, to avoid a harmful visual impact on the 
surrounding area and to comply with the National Planning Policy Framework, Policies LP10 and 
Policy LP23 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029.

 3.  When the site ceases to be occupied by Commercial Exports Ltd (CEL Trucks Ltd), the use hereby 
permitted shall cease and all materials and equipment brought on to the site in connection with the 
use shall be removed.
Reason - In the interest of highway and pedestrian safety, to avoid a harmful visual impact on the 
surrounding area and to comply with the National Planning Policy Framework and Policies LP10 and 
Policy LP23 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029.

 4.  At no time shall the height of vehicles stored on the site exceed 5 metres, unless otherwise 
agreed, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason - In the interest of the visual amenities of the area and to comply with the National Planning 
Policy Framework, Policy R/DP1 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan Review and Policy LP10 of the 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029.

 5.  At no time shall the number of staff on site exceed 5 no. persons, unless otherwise agreed, in 
writing, by the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason - In the interest of highway and pedestrian safety and to comply with the National Planning 
Policy Framework and Policy LP23 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029.

 6.  The 4 no. car parking spaces shown on approved plan 8339 01 Rev J shall be retained for the 
parking of cars at all times unless otherwise agreed, in writing, by the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason - To ensure a satisfactory level of car parking is provided on the site and to comply with the 
National Planning Policy Framework and Policy LP23 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029.



Regulatory Board: 26th February 2020

DC-AGENDA-EN-17.02.20 Page 7 of 12 DC/UNI-form Template

 7.  The entrance gates, shown on approved plan 8339 01 Rev J shall be retained in a manner so as 
to be incapable of being opened outwards over the highway. 
Reason - To prevent the harmful interruption of the free flow of vehicles on the highway, in the interest 
of highway and pedestrian safety and to comply with the National Planning Policy Framework and 
Policy LP23 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029.

 8.  The turning and manoeuvring area, hatched on approved plan 8339 Site Plan 01B, shall be 
provided and kept available for this purpose at all times.
Reason - In the interests of highway safety and to ensure adequate turning, is provided and retained, 
and to comply with LP23 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 and the Parking SPD.





Regulatory Board: 26th February 2020

DC-AGENDA-EN-17.02.20 Page 9 of 12 DC/UNI-form Template

ITEM NUMBER: 02.
APPLICATION NUMBER: 19/00490/FULL
APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs Mallett  
DATE REGISTERED: 05.11.2019

ERECTION OF SINGLE STOREY SIDE AND FRONT EXTENSIONS, INCORPORATING 
GARAGE (AMENDED SCHEME TO 18/00332/FULL) (as amended by drawings received 
28.01.2020)
26 Gomer Lane  Gosport  Hampshire  PO12 2SA    

The Site and the proposal

1. The application site is located on the western side of Gomer Lane. The property is a detached 
chalet type dwelling with rooms in the roof space and front and rear dormers. The dwelling has a 
steeply pitched roof with concrete profiled brown tiles. At the front of the property is a garden area 
and driveway which is approximately 9m long. The frontage of the dwelling is generally open, although 
there is some planting adjacent to the south (side) boundary the majority of which is outside the 
application site. At the rear of the property is a garden which is approximately 10m deep long and 
which is enclosed by approximately 1.8m high fencing. Dwelling materials are red orange brick, grey 
roof tiles and grey Cedral type horizontal boarding to the dormers. Upper gables are clad in white 
horizontal boarding.

2. The property to the north is approximately 1 metre away from the application dwelling and is of 
similar appearance, as are others to the north on this side of the road, being of uniform in size and 
style. A block of flats is located to the south and are approximately 11m away, these are three storey. 
The area has an established residential character.

3. A previous permission on this site (18/00332/FULL) was for the extension of both the front and rear 
dormer windows, the erection of a side and front extension and insertion of a new side window in the 
southern elevation. This has been part implemented with a front extension having been built providing 
a 1.8m deep projection across approximately 50% of the dwelling. An attached garage has been 
converted to provide additional habitable accommodation. 

4. This revised proposal includes the development previously proposed and part constructed. It now 
also proposes the erection of an extension forward of the previously permitted south side extension 
with the design of this garage having been amended following discussions with officers during the 
application process. 

5. The garage would be located forward of the dwelling as a continuation of the side extension. The 
proposed garage, as amended, would not extend as far forward as that originally proposed in this 
application and would extend 4.1m beyond the front wall of the existing dwelling and be 5.25m in 
depth from front wall to rear wall of the garage. The door width would be 3.0m and internally the 
garage would be 3.75m in width by 4.95m in depth and would be closer to the south side boundary, 
being approximately 0.1m away from the boundary in comparison to the approximately 1m of the side 
extension. Rather than the mock pitch originally proposed in this application, the garage would have 
a flat roof with a low parapet wall with shallow coping surrounding the roof. This would also be the 
case with the side extension. The height of the garage and side extension with parapet wall as now 
proposed would be 3.0m rather than the previous 3.8m as previously proposed in this application. It 
is proposed to utilise a cream coloured smooth render finish with grey tiles to match existing materials 
and what was permitted previously.

6. The site is within 50m of recorded locations of Notable and Protected Species, which are Knotted 
Hedge-Parsley and Hoary Plantain. None of these species have been observed on the site.



Regulatory Board: 26th February 2020

DC-AGENDA-EN-17.02.20 Page 10 of 12 DC/UNI-form Template

Relevant Planning History

18/00332/FULL - erection of extensions to existing front and rear dormer windows, erection of single 
storey front and side extensions and insertion of first floor side window - permitted 01.10.2018

Relevant Policies

Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011 – 2029:
LP1  Sustainable Development
LP10  Design
LP23  Layout of Sites and Parking

Supplementary Planning Documents:
Gosport Borough Council Design Guidance:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 
2014
Gosport Borough Council Parking:  Supplementary Planning Document:  February 2014

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), February 2019

Consultations

Nil.

Response to Public Advertisement

1 letter of representation raising the following issues:
- previous works to the property have been carried out in the early morning, late evening and at 

weekends causing noise disturbance.

Principal Issues

1. A certain level of disturbance is inevitable during the construction period. If this becomes a statutory 
nuisance, the matter would be dealt with through the Environmental Health legislation.

2. The application site is located within the Urban Area Boundary where the principle of development 
is acceptable, subject to compliance with other policies in the Local Plan. The main issues to be 
considered in the determination of this application are: whether the proposed development would 
result in an adverse impact on and harm to the street scene or to the character and appearance of 
the locality; whether the proposed development would result in harm to the amenity of the occupiers 
of surrounding dwellings; and, whether the proposed development makes satisfactory provision for 
parking in accordance with Council policy.

3. The application dwelling is set back between 8m and 9m from the back edge of footpath. Dwellings 
to the immediate north are set back by similar distances and none have projecting front elements 
such as that proposed in this application. The flats to the south are also set back by between 9m and 
10m from back edge of footpath with no projecting element. Similarly, dwellings opposite on the east 
side of Gomer Lane in the vicinity do not project forward and are set back by greater distances. The 
character of the area in the vicinity of the site is an established residential one and is relatively open 
on either side of the highway. There is limited deciduous boundary planting on the south (front) side 
boundary, although there are 2 more reasonably substantial trees further into the flats site to the south 
and these would provide some, albeit limited, screening and mitigation of the visual impact of the 
proposal when in leaf. Whilst the proposal in this current application has been revised and does seek 
to mitigate officer concerns regarding visual impact, it would, however, still introduce a relatively large 
new building element on front of the existing dwelling that would have reasonably substantial 
massing, notwithstanding removal of the mock pitch surrounding the flat roof. The proposal would be 
clearly visible in the streetscene when approaching the site from the north. The proposed garage 



Regulatory Board: 26th February 2020

DC-AGENDA-EN-17.02.20 Page 11 of 12 DC/UNI-form Template

would also still be visible when approaching from the south, although to a slightly lesser degree given 
some limited existing planting to the south.

4. The proposal would introduce a relatively large projecting front element to the existing dwelling that 
would appear as an incongruous feature in the streetscene. Given the absence of forward projecting 
elements at existing dwellings in the vicinity, it is considered that this would be an intrusive and 
discordant visual feature in the streetscene that would be visually harmful to the streetscene and to 
the visual amenities of the area. 

5. The Councils Design Guidance SPD advises that, 'The design and appearance of the fronts of 
houses, and the distance between the buildings and the street area important aspects of defining the 
character of residential areas. Generally and where design and context allows, only modest front 
extensions will be acceptable'. This is clearly intended to prevent the introduction of visually intrusive 
development, whether it be by virtue of size/massing or design. The proposed extension is for a 
relatively large new element to the dwelling which would be prominent and is considered to be both 
visually intrusive and incongruous in terms of design and visual appearance. It is therefore considered 
that the proposed garage would result in an adverse impact on and harm to the street scene and also 
to the character and appearance of the locality. The proposed development is not therefore 
considered to be acceptable in design terms and does not accord with Policy LP10 of the Local Plan 
nor with the Design SPD.

6. The proposed garage would not result in harm to the amenity of surrounding occupiers, since there 
remains adequate separation between it and surrounding development. No openings are proposed 
in the south elevation facing towards the adjoining flats and in any event, a garage would not be 
considered as a habitable room. The proposal is not therefore considered to give rise to harm to the 
amenity of surrounding occupiers. The proposed development is therefore considered to be 
acceptable in amenity terms and would accord with Policy LP10 of the Local Plan and with the Design 
SPD.  

7. The dwelling now no longer benefits from the single integral garage and at present there is sufficient 
width to comfortably park 2 cars side by side in front of where the garage was. Taking into account 
the garage proposed, it is likely that a significant amount of the area to the front of the garage would 
need to be hard surfaced to gain the necessary access/egress. This would be likely to mean that on-
site parking would at least meet Council Standards for the provision of 3 parking spaces to serve the 
extended dwelling. Were planning permission to be granted however, it would be desirable that an 
external parking layout be provided to demonstrate that satisfactory provision for 3 car spaces could 
be made and clarifying whether the existing dropped kerb would be widened to improve access. If 
the scheme were considered acceptable, this could be addressed by the imposition of a suitably 
worded planning condition and by an informative regarding the need for Highway Authority 
agreement.

8. In respect of the internal dimensions of the proposed garage, the Councils Parking SPD states that 
garages are only accepted as a car space if they are 6m long by 3.2m wide internally. The proposed 
internal dimensions would not meet requirements, despite it being indicated that the garage is 
intended to be used for vehicle parking. However, given that there is potential for 3 spaces externally 
to meet the parking requirements for the dwelling as extended, it is considered that the garage size 
and whether it could be counted as a parking space is not an overriding consideration. The site is 
capable of making external provision for 3 car parking spaces in accord with Council Standards and 
would therefore be accordance with Policy LP23 of the Local Plan and with the Parking SPD.

Equalities Impact Assessment: No Implications

RECOMMENDATION:  Refuse



Regulatory Board: 26th February 2020

DC-AGENDA-EN-17.02.20 Page 12 of 12 DC/UNI-form Template

For the following reason:-

1.  The proposal would, by reason of its inappropriate scale and unsympathetic prominent siting, 
appear as an incongruous, discordant and visually intrusive feature within the streetscene and as 
such be harmful to the visual amenities of the locality. The proposed development is contrary to the 
principles of good design set out on the National Planning Policy Framework and conflicts with Policy 
LP10 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan, 2011 - 2029 and the adopted Design SPD.


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 15 January 2020
	6 Fareham Local Plan 2036: Supplement
	7 Consultation from Fareham Borough Council<br/><br/>P/19/1260/OA - cross boundary outline application, with all matters reserved except for access, for the construction of up to 99 residential dwellings, landscaping, open space and associated works, with access from Brookers Lane (Gosport Borough Council to only determine part of the application relating to part access in Gosport Borough)<br/><br/>Land East of Newgate Lane East, Fareham<br/>
	8 Report of the Head of Planning and Regeneration

